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Consolidated financial statements

Quiarter |l of 2019 and for the six-rmonth period ended 30 June 2019
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Vietnam Prosperity Joint Stock Commercial Bank

GEMNERAL INFORMATION

THE BANK

Vietnam Prosperity Joint Stock Commercial Bank (the “Bank’ or "VFBank"} s a joint stock
commercial bank incorporated and ragistered in the Sacialist Republic of Vistnam.

The Bank wae established pursuart to Banking License Mo, D042/NH-GP dated 12 August 1993
issued by the State Bank of Vielnam {the "SBY") and Business Reglstration Certificate Mo,
0100233583 dated & September 1383 issued by Hanol Cepartment of Planning and Investment
which was amended for the 41% time on 27 Novembar 2013. The Eank started operation on 12
August 1983 with an operation period of 9€ yaars.

The Bank's principal aclivities are o provide banking serviczs including mobilizing and receiving
short, medium and long-term ceposits frem organizations and individuals; making short, medium
and long- term loans and advances to organizations and individuals; candueting foreign exchange
fransactions; providing international trade finance services; discounting of commercial papers,
bonds and other valuzble papers; investing in shares and bonds; providing selllement ssrvices:
digital wallet; investing in future contract of Government bonds; providing asset management
services; granting credit in form of rediscounting negotiable instruments and other valuakle papers
and other banking services as allowed by the SBY.

Charter capifal

As at 30 Jure 2019, the charter capital of the Bank is YND25 299 880 million (31 December 2018
VND25,299 880 million).

Operational notwork
The Bank's Head Office is located at Mo, 89 Lang Ha, Lang Ha Ward, Dcng Da District, Hanoi,

Vietnam, As at 30 June 2019, the Bank has ane (1) Haad Office, sixty one (61) branches, ona
hundred and sixty five(165) transaction offices nationwide and two (2] suksidiaries,

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The members of the Board of Directers of the Bank during the period and as at the date of the
conselidated financial statements are as follows:

Name Postticn

Mr. Mgo Chi Dzung Chairman

Mr. Bui Hai Guan Vize Chairman

Mr. Lo Bang Giang Vize Chairman

M. Mguyen Wan Hao Independent mamkbear
Mr. Mguyen Duc Winh Member



Vietnam Prosperity Joint Stock Commercial Bank

GENERAL INFORMATION (cortinued)

THE BOARD OF SUPERVISION

The members of the Board of Supervision of the Bank during the period and as at the dats of the
consclidated financial statemenis are as follows:

Name = Pasition
Mr. Ngo Phuong Chi Head of Board of Supervsion
Ms, Mguyen Thi Bich Thuy Full-time member
Ms, Trinh Thi Thanh Hang FulHtime member
Ms. Kim Ly Huyen Fulk-time mamber

Appointad on 26 April 2018
Mr. Wu Hoeng Caa Mon full-time member

Mppointed on 26 April 2019

THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

The members of the Board of Management of the 2ank during the period and as at the date of the
consolidated financial statements are as follows:

Name _ Fasition

Mr. MNguyen Duc Vinh Chief Executive Cfficer

Ms. Luu Thi Thao Standing Deputy Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Sanjesv MNanavati Standing Deputy Chief Exccutive Officer
Mr. Nguyen Thanh Binh Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Phan Mgoc Hoa Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Ms. Duong Thi Thu Thuy Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Nguyen Thanh Long Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Fung KaiJin Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Pham Phu Khoi Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Kosarajy Kiran Babu Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Cinh Van Nho Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Phung Duy Khuong Deputy Chief Fxecutive Officer

Appointed on 3 January 2018

LEGAL REFRESEMNTATIVE

The legal representative of the Bank during the period and as at the date of the consolidated
financial slatementa iz Mr. Ngo Chi Dzung — Chairman.

Mr. Mguyen Duc Vinh - Chief Exscutive Officar was authorized by Mr. MNgo Chi Dzung to sign off the
accompanying consclidated finanzial statements for the period ended 30 .June 2019 according to
Authorization Document No. 09/2012/UQ-CT dated 5 July 2012,



Vietnam Prosperity Joint Stock Commercial Bank

CONSCLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
as at 30 June 2019

ASBETS
Cash, gold and gemstones
Balances with the State Bank of Vietnam

Placements with and eredit granting to other
credit institutions
Placemeants with other credit institutions
Credit granting to other credit institutions

Securities held for trading
Securities held for trading
Pravision for securties held for trading

Derivatives and other financial assats

Loans to customers
Loans to customers
Prowigion for loans to custamers

Investment securities
Available-for-sale securties
Held-to-maturity securitiss
Provision for investment sacurities

Long-term investmants
Other long-term investments
Provision for long-term investments

Fixed assets

Tangille ixved assats
Zosf
Accumulated depreciation

intangible fixed assets
Cost
Accumulated amortization

Other assets
Receivables
nterest and fees receivable
Other assets
Provisian for other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

BO2a/TCTO-HN

30 Jurie 2079 37 December 2018

Motes VIND millicn VND miltion
5 2,443,631 1,855,473
6 6,760,926 10,828,571

19,982,265 16,571,491

71 17,357,252 15,337 628
7.2 2625013 1,233,863
4,890,945 4,202,413

4,808 642 4,240,742

{17,897 {38,329

9 100,507 -

243,517,843 218,395,223

10 247 632,796 221,961,996
11 (4.114 853) (3,5686,773)

50,258,989 51,926,416

121 48,992,906 48417 157

122 1,835,094 3,564,933

12.3 (269,011} {1,065,574)
13 160,566 190,654

227 802 227,802

(87 038) (35,948}

1,896,219 1,963,086

14.1 1,342,867 1,385,872
2,282,194 2211225

(939,633) {825,653)

142 553 658 577 524
1,000,625 959,289

(446,967) (381,765)

18,720,358 17,357,782

15,1 11,316,333 10,482 282
15.2 4,400,570 4.427 765
16.3 3,038,541 2473219
15.4 {45,085) {25,484)
348,732,250 323,291,119




Vietnam Prasperity Joint Stock Commercial Bank B02a/TCTD-HN

COMEOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (continued)
as at 30 June 2019

30 Jure 2079 37 December 2018

Notes VIND miffion VIND mitlion
LIABILITIES
Amounts due to the Government and the
State Bank of Vietnam 16 2020747 3,781,343
Deposits and borrowings from financial
institutions and other credit institutions 45,436,427 §4,231,451
Deposits fram other eredit institutions 71 18,588,810 21,145 184
Borrowings from financial institutiors and
other credit institutions 17.2 28 847 617 33,066 257
Customer deposits 18 197,362,899 170,850,871
Derivatives and other financial liabilities 8 - 18,571
Other borrowed and entrusted funds 19 319,874 329,649
Valuable papers issued 20 53,754,809 48,658,036
Other liabilities 11,629,102 10,671,129
Interest and fees payable 211 6,299 977 5,262 831
Other liabilities 21.2 5,329,125 5,408,198
TOTAL LIABILITIES 310.523,353. 288,541,050
OWNERS' EQUITY
Charter capital 25,299 680 25,209 680
Sharz premium 1,288,001 1,284,001
Reserves 5,821,079 5465879
Treasury sharas (2,491,721) (2,491 721)
Foreign exchange different (12,829) -
Fetained earnings 8303182 5187230
TOTAL OWNERS' EQUITY 23 38,208,392 34,750,069
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND OWNERS' EQUITY 348,732,250 323,291,118




Vietnam Prosperity Joint Stock Commercial Bank B02a/TCTD-HN

CONSCLIDATED BALAMCE SHEET (continued)
as at 30 June 2018

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

30 June 2079 31 December 2078

Mote WYIND miflion VN millicn
Cradit quarartees 15,458 20,626
Foreign exchange commitments 60,186, 823 66,826,741
- Spot foreipn exchange commitments - kuy 2,047 299 1,583,073
- Spol foreign exchange commitments - sell 2045053 1.582, 743
- Swap contracts 58,094,479 G5 460, 925
Irrevocakle loan commitments - 1,860
Letters of credit 18,240,350 14,799,169
Other guarantees 18,620,123 13,860,017
Other commitments 133,049,191 111,197,304

48 226,111,946 206,505,717
Freparec b}r:_(ﬁ’"/ Reviewed by:
g e 0 Ih—"

Ms. Nguyen Thi Thu Hang Ms. L2 Hoang Khanh An
Chief Accountant Acting Chief Financial Officer

Hanal, Vietnam

30 July 20149



Vietnam Prosperity Joint Stock Commercial Bank
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For quarter Il ana the sik-month period endad 30 June 20158

BO3a/TCTD-HN

Far the six=rmonth period

Naotos Cluariar If andad 20 June
2013 2078 2019 2018

VIND million VND million  VND million— VND million
Interest and simiar income 25 12,115,942 89,935,548 23,490,544 19,725,784
Interest and similar expenses 26 4,687,149} {3,826,885) (9,038,236) (7.930.274)
Met interest and similar income 7,426,393 6,168,653 14,451,308 12186,510
Fee and commissian income 1,356,528 a2, e 2,486,350 1,697 398
Fea and comrission expenses __1643,931) (526,083) (1,253,311} (1,083,163}
Net fee and commission income 27 712,667 301,709 1,233,639 604,235
Net gain/f{loss} from trading of
foreign currencies 28 1,382 52,908 {35,880) 13,398
MNet gain/(loss) from securifies
held for frading 29 53,684 (112, 460) 56,210 (82.569)
Net gain from investment
securities 30 106,769 15,687 275,827 193.318
Other operating incomsa 742,487 608,675 1,196,956 1862219
Other operating expenses {173.957) {157 .628) (345.743) (287,202)
Met gain from other cperating
activities kL 568,530 451,047 851,213 1,574,927
Income from investments in other
antities 12 - g45 - Bd5
TOTAL OPERATING INCOME 8,869,425 6,878,389 16,832,217 14,510,664
TOTAL OFPERATING EXPENSES 33 (3,043.733) ) _(_1_!,_:_32‘.-",7'1 1  (6,019,579) (4.688,548)
Met profit before provision for
credit losses 5,825,692 4,550,688 10,812,638 98232016
Frovision expenses for credit
loszes 34 (3265617) (2,794.179) (6,470,027) (5446,496)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 2,560,078 1,756,509 4,342,611 4,375,520
Current corporate incoma tax
expense i511.244)  (350.631) (871,459) (374,527)
Corporate income tax expense 22 i511,244) {350,631) (671.459) (874,527)
PROFIT AFTER TAX 2,048,821 __1,_41]5,_3?3 3,471,152 3,500,953
Basic earnings per share (VhD) 24 1,413 1,445

& 5 =
Preparad by @Ly Reviewed by
Ill 1}
] — f )

W /

Mz. Mguyan Thi Thu Hang
Chief Accauntant

Hanai, Vietnam
30 July 2018
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Vietnam Prosperity Joint Stock Commercial Bank

COMSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For quarter | and the six-manth period ended 30 June 2019

For the six-month

E04aTCTD-HN

For fhe ste-monith

period endad pSeriod ended
30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Nofes VIND million VD million
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Interest and similar recsipts 23 501,628 19,585 624
Interast and similar payments (8,003,783) (7.038,661)
Met fee and commission receipts 1,188,828 549 544
Met reccipts from dealing in foreign currencies,
gold and securities trading activities 251,126 247 191
Other incomes 102,463 840 874
Recoverizs from bad debis previously written-off 747 613 733887
Payments for employees and other operating
activities = (5,042 079)
Corporate income tax paid in the period 22 {1,061,820) (1,000,765)
Net cash flows from operating profit before
changes in aperating assets and liabilities 10,959,929 8,874,395
Changes in operaling assels {33,515,3586) (27,443,730)
Flacements with and credit granting to other
credit institutions (1,391,150) 2141305
Investment securities {191,515} 2,685 627)
Derivatives and other financial assets {100,507 (81,909)
Loans to cuslomers (23.590,156) (18,477 449)
Provision to write off loans to customers,
securities and long-term investments 6.541,344) {4,724 ,302)
Changes in other operating assets {1,500,584) 278,002
Changes in operating liabilities: 21,120,571 12,037,694
Amounts due to the Govermnment and the SBY {1,760, 508) 1,909,200
Deposits and barrowings from Anancial
institutions ard olher credit institutions (8,795 024) [9,220,604)
Customer deposits 26,912,028 17,751,523
Valuable papers issued (excapt for valuable
papers issued for financing activities) 5,088,773 {1,783 685)
Cther borrewed and entrusted funds 9,775) 2372
Derivatives and other financial lizbiities (18,571) (162 ,469)
Changas in other operating liabilities 85,736 459 338
Net cash flows used in operating activities (1,434,856) {537,701)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchaszes of fixed assets {268,373 (33,717)
Froceeds from disposal of fixed assets 1,366 438
Dividends received and profit disiributed f-om
long-term invesiments = 845
Net cash flows used In investing activities {25,007) {32,434)

S R, MS_ M
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Vietnam Prosperity Joint Stock Commercial Bank B04a/TCTD-HN

COMNSOLIDATED CASH ~LOW STATEMENT {continued)
For quarter I and the six-manth period ended 30 June 2019

For the six-month  For the si-maonth

period ended pericd ended

30 Jdune 2018 30 Jdune 2018

Notes — VND million YND million

Net cash flows in the pericd (1,459,863) (570,135)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning

of the period 28,021,672 24,253,800
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the

period 35 26,561,809 23,683,665

Prepared hy:%/ Reviewsd by:

Ms. Nguyen Thi Thu Hang Ws. Le Hoarg Khanh An

Chief Accountant Acting Chief Financial Officer  Chief Execufive Officer /

Hanoi, Vietnam

20 July 2018



Vietnam Prosperity Joint Stock Commercial Bank BOSTCTO-HN

NOTES TG THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
as st 30 June 2019 and for the six-month period then snded

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Vietnam Prosperity Joint Stock Commercial Bank (the *Bank” or "WPBank™ is a joint stock
cammercial bank incorporated and registered in the Socialist Republic of Yietnam.

The Bank was astablished pursuant to Banking License Mo, 0042/NH-GP dated 12 August
1982 issued by the State Bank of Vietnam (the *SBV") and Business Registration Certificata
No. 0100233583 dated 8 September 1993 issued by Hanoi Deparimert of Planning and
Investment which was amended for the 417 fime on 27 Movemhber 2018, The Bank started
operation an 12 Augusl 1983 with an operation period of 99 years,

The Bank’s principal activities are to provide banking services including maobilizing and
eceiving shert, medium and long-term deposits from organizations and individuals; making
short, medium and long- te'm loens and advances to organizations and individuals;
conducling foreign exchange transactions; providing International trade finance services:
discounting of commercial papers, bonds and other valuable papers; investing in shares and
oonds; providing settlement services; aigital wallat; investing in future contract of
Government bonds; providing asset management services, granting credit in form of
rediscounting negofiable instruments and other valuable papers and other bankng services
as allowed by the SBY.

Charter capital

As at 30 June 2019, the charter capital of the Bank is VMD25,299 680 million (31 Decembar
2018: VND2E 290 880 million),

Operational network

The Bank's Head Office is located at Ne. 89 Lang Ha, Lang Ha Ward, Dong Da District,
~anoi, Vietham. As at 30 June 2019, the Bank has aone (1) Head Office, sixty one (51)
branches, one hundred and sixty five (165) transaction cffices natlonwide and two (2)
subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries

As at 20 June 2019, the Bank has two (2) directly owned subsidiaries as follow:

Mature of

Subsidiaries Operaling llcense business Share capital - Ownership
VHBank Asset  Business Rengistration Assstand VND115 100%
Management Certificate Mo. 0105837483 liabilities hillian
Company issued by Hanoi Depariment management
Limited of Planning and Investment
("WPB AMC") which was last amenced on

28 December 20718
VPBank Finance Business Registration Other finance WHNDT 328 100%%
Company Certificate No. 3102180545  activities billion
L mited issued by Ho Chi Minh City
("WFB FC" Department of Planning and

Investment which was last
amended on 17 October
2018

Employees

As at 30 June 2019, total number of permanent employees of the Bank and ils subsidiaries
is 27,037 persons (31 December 2018: 27,429 persons).

g
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Vietnam Prosperity Joint Stock Commercial Bank BOSTCTD-HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continuad)
as at 30 June 2018 and for the six-month period then erdad

2. ACCOUNTING PERIOD AND ACCOUNTING CURRENCY

2.1 Fiscal year

The Bank's fiscal year stars on 1 January and ends on 31 Cecember.
The Bank's consalidated period starts on 1 January and ends on 30 Juns,

2.2 Accounting currency

Currency used in preparing consolidated financial statements of the Bank is Vietnam dong
WD) and rounded fo the nearest million VND T"MD million").

3 APPLIED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND SYSTEM
3.1 Statement of compliance

The Boarc of Management of the Bank confirms that the ascomparying consolidated
financial statemenls have been prepared in accardance with Viethamese Accounting
Standards, Vietnamese Accounting System for Credit Institutions and other relevant

statutory requirements related to the preparation and presentztion of corsclidated financial
statemenis

3.2 Accounting standards and system

The consolidated financial statements cf the Bank are prepared in accordance with the
Accounting Syslem applicable fo Crecit Institutions reguired under Decision No.
ATYRC04HT0-NHNN izsusd on 29 Aphl 2004, Circular Me. 10/2014/TT-MHNN dated 20
March 2014 and Circular Mo, 22/2017/TT-NHNN dated 29 December 2017 amending and
supplementing Decision Mo. 475/2004/Q0-NHNM, the financial reporting regime applicable
to credit insttutions required under Decision No. 16/2007/QC-MHNN dated 18 Apell 2007
and Clrcular Mo, 48/2014TT-NHNN amending and supplementing a number of articles of
Decision No. 16/2007/QD-NHNN and the chart of account system for Credit Institutions
issued in connection with Decision No. 478/2004/Q0-NHNN by the State Bank of Vietnam
and Viethamesa Accounting Standards issued by the Ministry of Finance as per:

= Decision Mo, 148/2001/00-BTC dated 31 December 2001 on the |ssuance and
Fromulgation of Four Vietnamese Accounting Standards (Series Mo, 1);

» Declsion No, 165/2002/QD-BTC dated 31 UDecember 2002 on the Issuance and
Promulgation of Six Vietnamese Accounting Standards (Series Mo, 2):

#  Decision Mo, 234/2003/Q0-BTC dated 30 December 2003 on the |ssuance and
Fromulgation of Six Viethamese Accounting Standards (Series Mo, 3):

» Decision MNo. 12/2005/0D-BTC dated 18 February 2005 an the lssuance and
Promulgation of Six Vietnamese Accounting Standards (Series Mo. 4); and

#  Decision Mo, 100/2005/Q0-BTC daled 28 December 2005 on the ssuance and
Promulgation of Four Vietnamese Accounting Standards (Series Mo, §).

The accompanylng consclidated financial statements have been prepared using accounting
principles, procedures and reporting practices generally accepted in Vietnam. Accordingly,
the accompanying consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated cash flow statement and the notes to the consolidated financial s-aterments and
their utilization are not designed for those who are not informed about Vietnam's accounting
principles, precedures and practices and furthermore are not intended to presert the
consclidated financial position, results of consolidated operations and consolidated cash
flows in accordance with accounting orinciples and practices generally accepted in countries
other than Vietnam,

ltems or balances reguired by Decision No. 16/2007/QD-NHNN dated 18 April 2007 and
Circular Mo. 48/2014/TT-NHNHN dated 31 December 2014 issusd by the SBY stipulating the
financial statements reporting machanism for credit insttutions that are nat shewn in these
consolidated financial statzments indicate nil balance,

10



Vietnam Prosperity Joint Stock Commercial Bank BOSTCTD-HN

NOTES TO THE CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 30 June 2019 and for tha six-month period then ended

3.
3.3

3.4

4.1

4.2

4.3

APPLIED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND SYSTEM (continued)

Assumptions and uses of estimates

The presentation of the consolidated financial staterents requires the Boad of
Management of the Bank to make estimatss and assumptians that affer: the reported
amount of assets and liakilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities. These estimates and
assumptions alse affect the income, expensea and the resultant provision. The actual
results may differ from such estimates and assumptions.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statemenis comprise the financial statements of (he Bank and its
subsidiaries for the six-month period ended 30 June 2018,

Subsidiaries are “ully consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the
Bank obizins control.

The financial slalements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as
the Pareat Bank, using consislent accounting policies.

All intra-group balances, incoms and expsnses and unrealized gains or losses resulting
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The accounting policies adopted by the Bank in preparation of the consclidated financial
statements are consistent with those followed in the preparation of the Bank's annual
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 Cecember 2018 and the periad
ended 30 June 2018,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise balance with the SBY, demand deposits and
placements with other credit nstitutions with 2n original maturity of three manths or less
from the transaction date, sscurities with recovery or maturity of thras months or less from
date of purchase which are convertible into a known amount of cash and do not bear
liquidity risk as at the ~eporting dale.

Placements with and credit granting fo other credit institutions

Placements with and credit granting to other credit institutions are presented at the princlpal
amounts cutstanding at the end of the period.

I'he credit risk classifization of placements with and credit granting to other credit institutions
and provision for credit risks thereof are provided in accordance with Cireular Na, 02/2013/TT-
MHNN dated 21 January 2013 of the 5BV on classification of assets, levels and method of
making risk provison, and use of provision againsl wedit risks in cperation of credit
institutions, foreign bank's branches ("Circular 02" and Clrcular Mo, 082014/ TT-NHNM dated
18 March 2014 on amending and supplamenting a number of article of Cireular 02 ("Circular
0a),

Accoreingly, the Bank makes a soecific provision lor placements with (except for current
accounts) and credit granting to other credit institutons according to the method as
dascribed in Nota 4.5.

Accorcing to Circular 02, the Bark is not required to maks a general provision for
placements with and credit granting to other credil instiutions.

i



Vietnam Prosperity Joint Stock Commercial Bank BOSITCTO-HN

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {confinued)
as at 30 June 2019 and for the six-month perod then ended

4,

4.4

4.5

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PCLICIES [continued)

Loans to customers

Leans to customers are presented at the principal amounts cuistanding as at the end of tha
period,

Shert-term loans have maturity of less than or equal to one year from disbursement date.
Medium-term loans have maturity frem over one year to five years from disbursement date.
Leng-term loans have maturty of maore than five years from disburssment date,

Loan classification and provision for credit losses are made according fo Circular 02 and
Circular 09 ag presentad in Mote 4.5

Loan classification and provision fur credit Josses applied to placements with and
credit granting to olher credit instifutions, uniisted corporate bonds purchased and
trusted for purchase by the Bank, [oans to customers, entrusted for eradit granfing
by the Bank and other cradil risk hearing assets

The classification of placements with and credit granting to other credit instituticns, direct
and entrusted investmenis in urlisted corporate boncs, loans to customers and
entrustments for credit granting (collectively called "debts") is made in compliance with the
guantitative mathod as prescribed in Article 10 of Cireular 02.

The specific provision for debts as at 30 June is mada based on the principal balance less
discounted value of collateral, then multiplisd by prowvision rates which are determined
bazed on the debt classifications as at 31 May, The specific provision rates for each group
gre presenied as follows:

12



Vietnam Prosperity Joint Stock Commercial Bank BOSITCTD-HN

MNOTES TG THE CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS jconfinued)
as at 30 June 2019 and for the six-month period then ended

4, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued:

4.5 Loan classification and provision for credit losses applied to placements with and
credit granting to other credit institutions, unlisted corporate bonds purchased and
trusted for purchase by the Bank, loans to customers, entrusted for credit granting

by the Bank and other credit risk bearing assets (cortinuad)

Group | Deszcription

Provislon
rate

1 | Currant | (a) Current debls sre assessed as fully and timely resoverable for both
principals and Interests; or

b} Dabte are averdus for a perod of lass than 10 days and assessed
as fally recoverable for both overdue principals and interests, and
fully anc timely recoversble for buolh rernaining principals and
interesis,

0%

2 | Special  (a) Dekbts ara overdue for a period of between 10 days and 90 days: or

o
MeDiion ib)  Detts which the repayment tarms are restructured for the first time,

5%

3 [Sub ta} Dsbts are cverdue for a period of betwaen 91 days ane 130 days; or

standard (b} Dabte which the repayment ferns are exfended for the first ime; or

ic] Deble which interests are exempted or redused because customers
do not have sulficient capebility to repay all interests under credit
contracts; or

id} Debts under one of the ‘ollowing ssses which have not besn

recovered in less than 20 days from the date of the recowvery
decision:

= Nehts made incompliance with Clause 1, 9, 4, 5, & under Adicla
128 of Lew on Credit Institutions ; or

8 Debte made incompliance with Clsuse 1, 2, 3, 4 under Adicle
127 of Law on Credit Institutions ; or

= [abte made incomplisnce with Clavses 1, 2 and 5 under Adicla
128 of Law on Cradit |nstitutions.

(g) Debts are required o be recovered accorcing fo requlatory
inspaction conclusions.

20%

4 | Doubtful | {a} Debts sre overdue for a period of between 181 cays and 380 davs:
or

(b} Dabls which the repayment terms are restructured for the first time
but still overdus for & period of lese than 90 days under that
restruciured repayment term; or

ie) Debts which tho repayment terms are restructured for the sscond
time; or
(d} Debtz are specified in peint (d) of Lear group 3 and everdus for a

period of betwean 30 days and 50 days affer decisions of recovery
have been issued; or

ie) Debts are rsgquired to be recovered accorcing to reculstory
inspzclion eonclusions but still cutstanding with ar overdue pericd up
to B0 days sirce the rscovery date as required by regulatony
insgeclio wnolusions,

0%

13



Vietnam Prosperity Joint Stock Commercial Bank BOSTCTD-HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
as at 30 June 2019 and for the six-month period then ended

4,

4.5

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cantinued)

Loan classification and provision for credit losses applied to placemenis with and
credit granting to other credit institutions, unfisted corporate bonds purchased and
trusted for purchase by the Bank, loans to customers, entrusted for credit granting
by the Bank and other credit risk bearing assets (cantinued)

. Provision
Group ! Description cate
5 | Loss (a) Debts are averdue for a perlod of more than 360 days; or 1005

ik} Debts which the rapayment terms are restructurad for she fra: fima
but still svardus for & perind of 90 days or more under that first
restructu-ad rapayment term: ar

i) Debts which the repayment terms are restructured for the secend
time but still cverd.ue under that second restruciured repayment term;
o
(d} Deabls which the repaymeant -ems are restructured for the third time or
rore, ;egardless of being overdue er not, or
(e} Debls arz specified in point (d) of Lean greup 3 and overdus for
| period of more than B0 days afier decisions on recovery have besn
| issuad; or
if) Dablz are required to ke recovered under regulatory inspaction
conclusions buf still sutstanding with an overdue period of mara than
60 caye since the recovery date as required by regulatory inspeclion
conclusions; or

(at Debls of credit institutions under special control as announced by the

SEV, or deots of foreign bank branches which capital and assets are
blocked,

If & customer has more than one debt with the Bank and any of the outstanding debts is
classified into a higher risk group, the entire remaining debts of such customer should bs
classified into the corresponding higher risk group.

When the Bank participates in a syndicated lcan as a participant, it should classify loans
(including syndicated loans) of the customer into the group of higher risk between the
assgssment of the leading bank and the Bank.

For loans o customers in agricultural and rural sector, the Bank is allowed to restructure
these loars and keep their debl greups as before restructuring for only one time in
accordance with Circular Mo, 10/2015/TT-NHNN dated 22 July 2015 providing guidance on
cartain contents of Decres No. 55/2015/ND-CP dated 9 June 2015 by the Govemment on
credit policies for agriculture and rural developmant.

The basis far determinaton of value and discounted value for each type of collaterzl is
specified in Circular 02 and Circular 09.

General provision as at 30 June is mads at 0.75% of total outstanding debt balances
excluding placements with and eredit granting to other credit institutions and debts classified
as loss (group 5) as at 31 May.

14
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (centinued)
as 2t 30 June 2019 and for the six-month perod then erded

4.
4.8

4.6.7

462

4.6.3

47

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
Securities held for frading
Classification ard recogiviion

Securities held for trading include debt securities acquired and held for resale. Securities held
for trading are initially recognized at cost.

Measuremon!

-isted debt securities held for trading are recognized at cost less pravision for diminution in
value of securities, which is based on the yield quoted on the Hanci Securities Exchange as at
ihe balance sheet date,

Frovision for credit losses on corporate bonds which are not listed on the stock market or
not registered on the unlisted public companies market is made in accordance with Sieular
02 and Circular 0% as describad in Mole 4.5

Provision for securities held for tading which is mentioned above is reversed when the
recoverable amount of securities held for trading increases after making provision as a result
of an objective event. Provision is reversed us to the gross value of these securities before
provision.

Interest derived from holding securilies neld for trading are recognized on a cash basis in the
consolidsted income staterment,

De-recagnifion

Trading securities are derecognized when the rights to recelve cash flows from thess
securities have been terminated o- the Bank has transfarred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownearship of these securities.

Avallable-for-sale securities

Available-for-sale securities include debt ard equity securities acquired by the Bank for the
investrent and available-for-sale purpases, not regularly traded but car be sold when thera
is a benefit. For equity sacurties, the Bank is neither the founding sharsholder naor the
strategic pariner, nor has the ability ‘o make cerain influerce in planning and making
decision in the finansial and operating policizs of the investees under a written agreement to
appaint personnel to the Board of Directors/Management.

Available-for-sale equity s=curities are initially recognized at cost at the purchase date and
cantinuously presented at cest in subsequent pariods,

Available-for-sale debl securities are recognized at par value a: the purchase date, Accrued
interest incurred before purchase {for debt securities with interest payment in arrears) and
deferred interest (for debt securities with interest payment in advance) are recognized in a
separate account. Discount/premium, which is the differasnce betw=en the cost and the
amount being the par value plus {*) accruec interest incurred before purchase (if any) or
minus (-) deferrzd interest (if any), is also recognized in a separate accaurt,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as =t 30 June 2019 and for the six-month period then ended

4,

4.7

4.8

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuad)
Available-for-sale securities {continued)

In subsequent periods, these secunties are continuously recorded at par value, and the
discount/pramium (if any) is amortized to the consolidated income statsment on a straight-
ling basis over the remaining term of securities. Interest received in arrears is recorded as
follows: Cumulative interest incurred before the purchasing dato is recorded as a decrease
in the accrued interest; cumulative interest incurred after the purchasing date is recognized
as income Dased on the accumulated method. Interest received in advance is amortized into
the intsrest income from investment securities on a straight-line basis over the term of
securities investment,

Available-for-sale securities are subjecl lo diminution review on a periodlcal basiz.

Provisian for diminution in value of securities is made when the carrying value is higher than
the market value in compliance with Circular No. 228/2008/TT-BTC issuad by the Ministry of
Finance on 7 Decemrber 2009. In case market prices of securities are not available or
cannot be determined reliably, no provision is made. Diminution provision s recognized in
‘Net gain from investment securities” in the consolidated income statement,

Provision for credit losses on corporate bonds which are not listed on the stack market ar
not regisiered on the unlisted public companies market is made in aceordance with Circular
02 and Circular 09 as described in Note 4.5

Held-ta-maturity investment securifies

Held-to-maturity investment securities include special bonds issued by Vietnam Asset
Management Compary (“VAMC"} and other investment securities hald to maturity.

Special bonds igsuaed by VAMC

Special bonds issued by VAMC are fixed term valuablz papers used to purchase bad debts
of the Bank. These specia’ bonds are initially recognized at face value at the date af
transaction and subsequently carried at face value during the hoiding period. Face value of

the bonds ecuals to the outstarding kalance of the debts sold less their unused specific
provision,

Suring the helding peiod, the Bank annually calculates and makss provision in accordance
with Gircular No. 14/2015/TT-NHNN dated 28 Augus: 2015 amending and supplementing

some articles of Circular Mo, 19/2013/TT-MHNN on the purchase, sale and resolution of bad
debts of YAMDE.

M required by Croular No. 14/2015TT-NHNN, each year within five consecutive working
days pricr to the maturity dale of special bonds, the Bark Is obliged to fully make minimum
specific provision for each specizl bond using the be 'ow formula;

K = —: XM= (Zm + Xzl
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MNOTES TQ THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 30 June 2019 ana for the six-maonth perod then ended

4,

4.8

4.9

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Held-to-maturity Investment securities (continuzd)

I wehich:

- Xm : minimum orovision for special bands in the mt year;

- Ami) accumulated specific provision for special bonds in the m-11 year:
- Y. face value of special bonds;

- n:term of special bonds {years),

- m: number of yaars from the bond issuance date to the provision date;

- Zm zccumulated bad deht recoverias at the provision date (mih year),
If (Zr + X} = [ =% m), the specific provision (Xm) will be zero (0],

Specific provision for special bonds is recognized in the congolidated income statement in
"Provigion expansa far credit fosses”. Generzl provision is not required for the special
oonds.,

an settlement date of special bonds, recovery from the debts is recognized into "Other
aperaling income’,

Diher held-to-maturity securities

Other held-to-maturity securities are debt securities purchased by the Bank for the
nvestment purpase of earning dividend and the Bank has the intention and capability to
hold these irvestmants uatil maturity. Other held-to-maturity securities have determinable
value and maturity date. In case the securities are sold before the maturity date, the
emaining of that porfolio will be reclassified to secusities held ‘or trading or available-for-
zale securities,

Held-to-maturity securities are recorded and measured identical to debt securities available-
for-sale and presented at Mole 4.7

Re-purchase and reverse re-purchase confracts

Securities sold under agreemeants to repurchase at a specific date in the future (repos) are
still recognized in the consolidated financial statements. The corresponding cash recsived
from these agreemenis is recegnized in the consolidated balance sheel as a borrowing and
the difference between the sale price and repurchase price is amortized in the consolidated
ncome statement over the term of the agreement using the straight-line method based on
the interest rate stipulated in the contrazt.

Conversely, securities purchased under agreements to resall at a specific date in the future
are not recognized in the consolicatec financizl statemants. The caresponding cash paid
dnder these agrasments is recognized as a lean in the consolidated balance sheet and the
difference between the purchase prce and resale price is amortized in the consalidated
ncome statement over the term of the agreement using the straight-line method based on
the interest rate stipulated in the contrast.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEMTS {contnued)
as at 30 June 2018 and for the six-month pericd then ended

4.70

4.11

4.12

413

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuzd)
Other fong-term investments

Other long-term invastments represent investmeants in other entities in which the Bank holds
less than or equal to 11% of voting rights. These investments are initially recorded at cost at
the investment date.

Far listed securiiies or unlisted but registered for trading securities on unlisted public
company market (UPCaM), provizion for diminution in value is made when their
listed/registered price for trading is lower than the carrying value of the securties at year
end,

In other cases, provigion for diminution in the value of other long-term invesiment is madsa
when the investee sufers Inss, excent that such Inss had been forecasted in the investee's
business plan before the investment. Provision for diminution in the value of other long-term
investment is nmade using the below formulza:

Pravision far Total invested Invested amount of
diminutionin -~ _ amaunt of all . Owners' equity | 4 each party

veluzofeach |  parties in the oitheentity | Total invested zmount
Hhvestnient | entity of all parties in the

entity
Provision is reversed when the recoverable amount of the investment increases after tha
provision is made. Provision is reversed ug to the gross value of the investment befora tha
provision is made.,
Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost less aceumulated depreciation or amartization.

The cost of a fixed asset comprises its purchase price plus any dirscily atiributable costs of
bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use.

Cost related to additions. improverents and renewals are capitalized whi'e expendifures for
maintenance and repairs are charged to the conzolidaicd income statement.

When assets are sold or liquidated, their cost and accumulated depreciation are deducted
from the consclidated balance sheet item and any gains or losses resulting from thelr
disposal are recorded to the consolidated income statement.

Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets and amortization of intangible fixed assets are on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of thase assets as follows:

Buildings and architectonic models 5 —40 years

Moior vehicles 6 yesrs

Machines and equipment 2—Tyears

Computer software 3=14 years

Other fixed assets 3-5vyeare
Operating lease

Rentals undsr cperating lease are charged In the “Tofal operating expenses’ of the
consalidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the lezse.
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MOTES TO THE COMSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 30 June 2019 and for the six-month period then ended

4.
4.14

4.74.7

4.14.2

4.15

4.16

4.16.1

4.16.2

4.76.3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuzd)

Receivables
Recefvables classified as credit-risk bearig assets

Feceivables classified as credit-risk assets are recogrized at cost. Doubfful receivables are
classified and orovided for provision by the Bank In accordance with the regulations on
recognition and use o provision ‘o resalve the credit risk as presented in Nofe 4.5,

Dilher receivahbles

Receivables other than receivables dassified as credit-risk bearing assets are recognized at
cost.

Provision for receivables is determined based on the overdue status of debts or expected
loss of current debts in case the debts are rot due for payment yet but the corporate debtors
have fallen irfo bankrupicy or are in the process of dissolution, or of individual debtors who
are missing, escaped, prosecuted, on lial or deceased. Provision sxpense incurred is
recorded in "Other operating expenses’ of the consolidatec income statement in the pericd.

Provisian for overdue dekts is made in accordance with Circular Mo, 228/2009TT-BTC as
Tollows:

Overdue sfatus = - Allowernce rale

From over s (B) months to under ane (1) year 40%

From ohe {1) to under two {2) years 50%

From two (2) to under thrae (3) years 705

Fram three {3) years and above 100%
Prepaid expenses

Prepaid expenses are reported as short-term and long-term prepaid expenses on the
consolidated halance sheet and amortized over the period for which the amount is paid or
the period in which economiz benefit is gensrated in relation to these expensas.

Share capital

Ordinary shares

QOrdinary shares are classified as awners' equity.

Share premitnm

On receipt of capital rom sharenolders, the difference between the issuance price and the
par value of the shares s recorded as share premium in "Owners’ aquity”™

Statufory reserves
Reserves of ihe Bank

The Bank appropriates the following statutory reserves in compliance with Law on Cradit
Instiutions Ma, 47/2010/QH12, Decres Mo, 83/2017/N3-CP and its Charter as follow:

Eagic for calculstion Maximum balance
Capital supplemantary reserve | 5% from profit after tax | 100% of charer capital
Financial reserve 10% from profit after tax Mot regulated
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NOTES TO THE COMSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as a: 30 June 2019 and far the six-manth perind than ended

4.

4.16

4.76.3

4.7

4.8

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Share capital (continued)

Statutory resenves (continued)

Other funds are appropriated from profit after tax. Aopropriation from profil after lax and
utilization of other funds must be approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders, These
funds are not regulated by law and are allowed to be fully distribuied.

These reserves are created annually based on the separate operating results at year-end.
Resarves of VEBank Assel Management Company Limited

Accerding to Circular Mo, 27/2002TT-BTC issuzd by the Ministry of Finance dated 22
March 2002, WPB AMC is required fo make appropriation of profit to reserves in a similar
wzy to the Bank,

According to Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC, for the financial year starfing on or after 1
January 2015, VFB AMC has stepped making provision for financial reserve,

Resenes of VPEBank Finance Company Limited

According to Decree Mo, 83/2017/ND-CP dated 7 Augus: 2017 issued by the Government of
Vietnam which rzplazes Decree Mo, 57/2012/ND-CP dated 20 July 2012, VPB FC is
required to make appropriation of profit to reserves in a similar way to the Bank.

Recognition of income and expenses

Interest income and expenses are recognized in the consolidated income staterment on an
accrual basis using the nominzl interast rates. The accrued interest of dests whicn are
classified in groups 2 to § I1s not recognized in the consolidated Income statement [n
compliance with Circular 02, Thess accrued interest is reversed and monitored ofi-balance
sheet and recognized in the consolidated income statement upon actual receipt,

Fees and commissions are recogn'zed on an acerual basis.
Debts trading cperation

The accounting treatment for debts purchased are in accerdance with Circular Mo,
092015/ TT-NHNMN issu=sd by the 5BV prescribing the purchase and sale of debts by credit
instilutions and foreign bank branches.

Purchase dabts

Debts purchased are initizlly recorded at purchzse price and subsequently presented at cost
less provision for credit losses. Price of debts purchased is the settlement amount which the
buyer pays for the seller under the debt purchase cantract.

Debis purchased are initally classified in the risk group which Is not lower than the rigk
group of the cebtzs before the purchase. Subsequently, debts purchased arc menitored,

classified and provided Tor credil losses similar lo normal leans o customers in ascordance
with Circular 02 and Circular 09,
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NOTES TO THE COMNSOLIDATED FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS (sontinusd)
as at 30 June 2019 and for the six-month period then ended

4.

4.98

419

420

4,21

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
Deabts frading aperation (confinued)
Sale of debts

Ineome and expanses from the sale of debts are racognized in accordancea with Cicular Me.
38/2015/TT-MHNN providing guidancs on the sale of debts of credit institutions and foreign
2ank branches,

Accorcing to Circular Mo, C2Z2015TT-NHNMN, the difference between the prices cf debts
ourchased or sold and their book value are recordad as follows:

= For debts recarded in the consalidated balancs sheet:

- |If the sale price is higher than the book velus of the debt, the difference shall be
recorded as income of the Bank in the petiod.

- Ifthe sale price is lower than the book valua of the debi, the differenze shall be used
to offset against the Indemnity paid by an individual oo guarartor (in case such
individual or guaranzor is cetarmined to be ragponsible for the damage ard obliged
to make indemnity under prevailing regulations), ar the compensation paid by the
insursr, or use of outstanding provision recegnized as expense previously. The
remaining kalance (if any) shall be recognized as an operating expense of the Banx
i1 the period.

#= For debts written-off and monitored off-balance shest, the proceeds from sale of debts
shall be recognized as ather incamea of the Bank,

Book valug of dabts purchased scld is the book value of the principal, interest and related
financial obligations (if any) of debls recorded in the balancz sheet or off-balance sheat at
the date of debts purchasad or sold; or the book value at the date of writing-off of debts; or
the book value of debts written-off orevously at the date of debts purchased or sold.

The selling price iz th2 sum of consideration which the debt seller receves from debf buyer
under a debt sale contract,

Foreign currency transactlons

All transactions are recorded in orginal currencies. At reporing date, maonetary assets and
liabilities denaminated in foreigr cumencies are translated into YND using exchange rates
ruling at the consolidated balance sheet date (Mote 46). Income and expenses in foreign
surrencies are coverted into VMD at rales ruling at the transacticn dates. Foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities are recognized and
followed in the "Forekn exchange differences” under “Owmners' equity” in the consolidated
palanca sheat and will ha transfarrad in tha consalidsted income ctatoment at the end of the
finarcial year.

Payables and accruals

Payables and accruals are recognized for amounis to be paid in the futurs ‘or goods and
services received, whether or not billed to the Bank.

Deposits from other credit institutions, customor deposits and vafuable papers
issued

Deposits from ather credit institutions, customer deposits and valuable papers issued are

disclosed at the principal amounts outstanding at the date of consolidated financial
staterments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (zontinued)
as at 30 June 2018 and for the sixsmonth pariod then ended

4,

4.22

4.23

4.24

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
Corporate income faxes
Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liablites for the current and prior period are measured at the
amount expected to recover from cr fo be paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and
tax laws are applied and enacted a: the consolidated balance shest date.

Current income tax is recognized to the consolidated inceme statement exceapt when it
relates to items recognized directly to equity, the current income tax is also directly
recognized in equity.

Current income tax assels and liahiliies are offset when there is a legally enforceable right
for the Bark to offset carrent tax assets against currant tax liahilities ard when ths Bank
intends to settle itz current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

The Bank's tax reports sre subject to examination by the tax authorities. Because the
application of tax laws and regulations to many types of transactions that is susceptible to
various interpretations, amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements could be
changed at a later datz upon final cetermination by the tax authorties,

Defemred ax

Deferred tex is provided on temperary differences at the consolidated balance sheet date
between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their earrying amount for the financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax payablz is recagnized for all temporary taxable differences,

Deferred corporate income tax assets are recognized for deductibls temporary differences,
deductble amounts carred over to subsequent periods of taxable losses, and unused ‘ax
credils when it is prokable that there will be suficient future taxable profit to use deductisle
lemparary diferences, taxable 'osses and unused tax credits, Deferred tax assets znd
deferred tax payable are determine on the basis of expected tax rates applied for the perod
whet the assets are recovered or liakilites are settied and on basis of effective and
applicable {ax rates and tax laws at period end.

Fiduciary assets

Assats held in a fiduciary capacity, unless recagnition criteria are met. are not recegnizec in
ihe Bank's financial statements, as they are not assets of the Bank.

Classificattan for off-balance sheef commitments

Accarding to Circular 02, credit nstitutions classify guarantees, payment acceptances and
irevocable loan commitments with spesific effective date (generally called cf-balance
sheet commitments") in complianee with Article 10, Circular 02 for management and
moenitoring of credit quality. Off-balance sheet commitments are classified into groups such
as Current, Special Mention, Subsfandard. Doubtiul and Loss sased on the overdue sta‘us
and other qualitative factors.
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NOTES TO THE COMSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEMNTS {continued)
as at 30 June 2015 and for the six-month pericd then ended

4.

4.25

4.28

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {cantinued)
Offsetifing

Financial assets and financial liabilifies are offset and the net amount is reported in the
consalidated balance sheet if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offsat
financial assets against financial liabilities or vice-versa, and there is an intention fo sstile on
a net basis, or to reallze the asset and settle the lability simultanecushy.

Derivativas

The Bank involves in currency forward contracts, swap contracts and cption contracts to
facilitate customers to transfer, modify or minimize forelgn exchange risk or other market
risks, and also for the business purpoze of tha Bank.

Currency forvrard contracts

The currency forward contracts are commitments ‘o setlle in cash In pre-determined
cumency on pre-determined future dzte based on pre-cetermined exchange rates. The
currency forward confracts are recognized at nominal value at the transaction datz and are
revalued for the reperting purpose at the exchange rate at the reporting data. Gains ar
lozses are recognized in fhe "Foreign cxchange difforences” under "Owners' equity” in the
consulidated balance sheel and will be lrarsfemed to the consolidated income statement st
the end of the financial year.

Swap confracts

The swap conlracts are commilments to setfle n cash on a pre-determined future date
based on pre-determined exchange rates calculated on the nofienal principal amount cr
commitments to settle intersst based on a floating rate or a fixed rate calculated on the
notional amaount and in a given perod.

The currency swap confracts are revalued perigdizally. Gain or losses are recognized in ths
‘Forgign sxchanoe differences”™ under "Owners' equity” in the consolidated balance sheet
and will be transferred to the consclidated income statement at the end of the finarcial year.

Differences in interest rate swaps are recognized in the consolidated ncome statement on
an accrual basis.

Ciption contracts

Dption contracts are commitments between the buyer and the seller (VPBank], in which, the
buyer has a right but not an obligation to purchase er s2l a fixed ameunt of foreign cumrency
gt a precetermined exchange rale within a predetennined period. In case e Loy choose
to execute their rights, the seller have the obligation to sell or buy 3 fixed amount of forsign
currency at the predeterminad exchance rate.

The price of option contracts (opticn confract fee), which the Bank has received, is allocated
en a straight line basis inte "Nef gain/ (loss) froem trading of forsign currencies” during the
outstanding period of the contract.
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MOTES TO THE COMSOLIDATED FINAMNCIAL ETATEMENTS (continued)
as at 30 June 2019 and for the six-monlh period then ended

4.

4.27

SUMMARY COF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Employee benefits

4.27.1 Post-employment benefits

4.27.2

4.27.3

4.28

Post-employment benefits are paid to retired employzes of the Bank by the Sozial Insurance
Agency which belengs to the Ministry of Labor, Invalics and Social Affairs. The Bank is
required o contribute to these post-employment benefits by paying soclal Insurance
premrium to the Social Insurance Agency at the rate of 17.5% of an employee's gross
monthly salary under reguiations. Other than that, the Bank has no further obligatian reating
to post-employment bensfits.

Vofuntany resignation bensfits

The Bank has the abligation, under Article 48 of the Vietram Labor Code Mo, 100201 2/0H13
effective from 1 May 2013, to pay allowance arising from wvoluntary resignation of
employees, equal o a ralf of monthly salary for each year of employmznt up to 31
December 2008 plus salary allowances (If any). From 1 January 2009, the average monthly
salary used in this calculation is the average monthly salary of the latest six-month period up
to the resignation date.

Unemplayment insurance

According 1o Circular No. 2820 5/TT-BLOTEBXH on guideines for Aricle 52 of the Law an
Employment and Decree No. 28/2015/ND-CP aated 12 March 2015 of the Savemment on
guidelines for the Law on Employment in term of unemployment insurance, the Bank is
required to contribute to the unempleyment irsurance at the rate of 1% of salary and wage
fund of unempoloyment insurance jainers and deduct 1% of manthly salary and wage of each
empioyees to contribute to the unemploymeant insurance.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounfed for using the purchasse method. The cost of a business
combination is measured as the fair value of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed and
equity instruments issued in exchange of voting rights at the acquisition date plus any costs
directly aftributable to the business combinafion. ldentifiable assets and lizbilitizs and
contingent liakilities assumed in a business combination are measured initislly at fair values
at the date ol business combination,

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is iniially maasured at cost being the excess cof
the cost the business combination over the Bank's interest in the net fair value of the
acquiree's idenlifisble assets, liabilitizz and contingert liabilities. If the cost of a business
combination ‘s less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the
difference is recognized direcly in the consolidated income statemant After initial
recognition. goodwill ‘s measured at cast less any accumulated arartization, Goodwill is
amortized over three (3) years on a straight-line basis.
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MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 30 June 2019 and for the six-month perioc then ended

5.

7.1

CASH, GOLD AND GEMSTONES

30 June 20189 31 December 20718

VD rmiliion VIND miilicn

Cash on hand in WND 1,512 654 1,227 415
Cash on hand in foreign currencles 745 365 548 525
Gold on hand 185422 79433
2,443,631 1,855,473

BALANCES WITH THE STATE BANK OF VIETNAM

30 June 2019 37 December 2018

VIND million VND million

Demand depeosits at the SBY
In WMD 6.518,966 10,466,975
In foreign currencies N _24{ _.360_' _3&1_,_5E
6,760,926 10,828,571

Ealances with the SEV include current account and compulsory reserves. As at 30 June
201€, compulsory reserve in WMND and current account in foreign currencizs bear interest at
rate of 1.20% p.a. and 0.05% p.a., respectively {31 December 2018: 1.20% p.a. and 0.05%
p.a., respectively).

Under the SBY regulations, tha Bank is reguired to maintain cerain cash reserves with the
SBY in the form of compulsory reserves. As at 30 Juna 2018, the required cash reserves of
custormer ceposits in WYND and foreign currencies having maturity of lzss than 12 months
are computed at 3.00% and 8.00%, respectively (2018 3.00% and 8.00%, respectvely) and
having maturity of owver 12 months are computed at 1.00% and 6.00% [2018: 1.00% and
6.00% respectively).

PLACEMENTS WITH AND CREDIT GRANTING TO OTHER CREDIT INSTITUTIONS
Placemenis with ofher credit institutions

30 June 2018 31 December 2018

VIND milflan VIND rmiliion
Demand deposits 2,065,852 12,068 678
InwWHD Hih dr0 4,034 529
In foreign currencies 1,080,482 2,133,849
Term deposits 15,291,400 3,268,950
InWMND 12,957,900 2,363,370
In foreign currencies 2,313 500 805 580

17,357,252 15,337,628
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Vietnam Prosperity Joint Stock Commercial Bank BOS/TCTD-HN

MOTES TO THE COMSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 30 June 2019 and for the six-maonth period then ended

7. PLACEMENTS WITH AND CREDIT GRANTING TO QTHER CREDIT INSTITUTIONS
{continued)

7.z Credit granting to other credit institutions

30 dune 2018 37 December 2078

WVND miilion VMD million

In WHD 2,391,663 769,463
In forgign currencies 233,340 464 400
2,625,013 1,233,863

Analysis of outstanding term deposits with and credit granting other credit institutions by
guality as at the end of the period are as follows:

30 June 2078 31 Decamber 20718

VMO million YIND milfiar
Current 17,816,413 4502873
Special mention - -
Substandard - -
Daubtful = =
Loss = = 5

17,816,413 4,502 813

B SECURITIES HELD FOR TRADING

8.1 Debt securities

o June 2018 31 December 2018

VND million VN million

Government and municipal securities 4 694,252 4240742

Securities issued by other credit institutions 209,340 -

4,808,642 4,240,742

Provision for securities held for trading {17,697) (38,329)
Provisicn for diminution in value of securitizs

held for trading {17,697) 138.329)

4,690,945 4,202,413
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Vietnam Prosperity Joint Stock Commercial Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS icontinued)
as at 30 June 2019 and for the six-month period then ended

BOSITCTR-HN

8. SECURITIES HELD FOR TRADING (cortinued)
8.1 Debt securities (confinued)
Changes in provision for securities held for trading in the period are as follows:
For the six-month  Forthe six-month
period ended perod ended
30 June 2079 20 June 2018
VD miltion VAID milfion
Cpening balance 38,328 -
Pravision charged/{reversed) In the perlod
(Mote 28) 1 20,632) 44 168
Closing balance 17,697 44,198
8.2 Securities held for trading by listing status
J0June 2018 371 December 2018
VND miffion WND million
Debt sacurities
Listad 4,908 842 4,240,742
9. DERIVATIVES AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS/{LIABILITIES)
Total confract Total carrying valus
nominal valye (81 €xchange rate as at
(at contractual reporting dats)
exchangs rate) Aszets Liabifitics Mol vafue
VD miflion  VIND million  VIND million WD million
As at 30 June 2019
Derivative financiaf
fnstrumants 31,792,356 31,748,103 (31,652,096) 596,007
Currency forward contracts 6041264 6041489 (5079 248) 62,251
Currency swap contracls 25752092 25706604 (25712848 {6,244}
Other derivative financial
instruments 5,176,270 3,185,304  (3,140,804) 44,500
36,969,626 34,833,407 (34,832,800) 100,507
As at 31 December 2018
Dorivafive financial
instruments 37,477,476 37,284,817 (37,361,354) (76,537}
Currency farvard contracts 7030481 7006722 (6 095 804) 10,518
Currency swap contracis 30,446,885 30,278,005 (30.365550) {87.455)
Other derivative financlal
instruments 6,350,452 4,442,399  (4,384,433) 57,966
43,827,928 41,727,216 (41,745787)  (18,571)
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Vietnam Prosperity Joint Stock Commercial Bank

BOS/TCTD-HM

MOTES TO THE CONSQLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

as at 30 June 2012 and for the sis-month period then ended

10,

101

10.2

LOANS TO CUSTOMERS

30 June 2078 21 December 2018

WD miitian % VD milion %
Leans to domestic economic
entities and individuals 232,447 683  93E7 210,805,697 2497
Discounted bills and valuablz
papers 84,436 0.04 152,527 0.07
Payments on behalf of
customers - 0.00 1,281 0.00
Leans financad by borrowed
and entrusted funds 423,309 0.17 488,859 022
Leans to foreign economic
ertities and individuals 119 0.00 220 0.00
Other cradit granting to
customers 14,666, 7o 2.492 10,513,212 4. 74

247,632,796 100 221,561,996 100

Analysis of loan portiolio by quality

Analysis of loan porifolio by quality as at pariod end is as follows;

30 June 2018 31 December 20718

VND miffion VYND miliicn

Currert 226,628 6149 202,527,733
Special mention 12512 688 11,667,993
Substandard 4 780018 4217034
Douktful 1.687 260 1,691,983
Loss 2114211 1,857,242
24T 632,796 221,961,996

Analysis of foan portfolin by original maturity

30 June 2018 31 December 2018

VIND million VND million

Shart term BG.B83,676 73,407 838
Medium term 108,457,380 59,662,808
Long term 52,291 730 48,891,351
247,632,796 221,961,996
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Vietnam Prosperity Joint Stock Commercial Bank

MNOTES TOQ THE CONSOLIDATED FIMAMCIAL STATEMENTS (zontinued)

as at 30 June 2018 and for the six-month period then ended

10.

10.3

LOANS TO CUSTOMERS (continued)

Analysis of loan portfolio by ownership and type of cusfomers

State-ownad comparies
One-member limited liability
companies with 100% State
owrership

Two or more member limited
liability companies with over 50%
Stafe ownership or being
contralled by the State

Cther limited liability companles
Joint stock companies with over
50% State ownership or being
controlled by the S:ate

Other joint-stock companies
Private enterprises

Fareign invested enterprises
Co-operatives and unions of co-
aperative

Household business and
indivicuals

Operation administration =ntity,
the Party, unions anc
assocations

Oilhers

BOSTCTD-HN

30 June 2078 37 December 20718
VND million % VND million o5
2,158,080 087 2,149,158 0.87
1,091,734 Q.44 830,083 0.37
13,619 0.0 17,358 0.
40,775,554 1647 37,131,870 1673
348,680 014 412 641 019
61,266,700 2474 51,966,135 2341
443 353 Q.18 476,169 022
261,295 0.1 2949, 702 0.18
57,024 0.02 68 445 0.03
141,213,696 57.02 128,603,645 57 HY
g2 0.00 5 B25 Q.00
G569 ____O.E_H_}_ 60 0.00
247,632,796 -m_n_ 221,961,996 100
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Vietnam Prosperity Joint Stock Commercial Bank BOS/TCTO-HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLICATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 30 June 2019 and for the six-month period then ended

10, LOANS TO CUSTOMERS (cortinued)

104  Analysis of loan partfalio by secfors

30 June 20718 31 December 2018
VND million % VMDD milion ¥

Agricultura’, forestry and
aquaculture 941,668 0.38 11489 388 (.52
Mining 900,302 038 381,618 018
Processing, manufacturing 13,845,485 559 11,938,173 5.38
Electricity, pefroleum and steam 2,421,803 0498 1,866 916 (.84
Water supply and waste
treatmant 198,813 008 216,406 010
Construction 19,136 260 7.72 18,234,816  8.67
Wholesale and retail rade, repair
of motor vehicles, moior cycles
ard personal gocds 20,171,341 11.78 24,844 053 1110
Transpaortation and logistics 7742183 313 7945263 358
Hospitality and restaurants 12,374,875 500 9,802,603 4. .45
Infarmation and media 411,126 0A7 296,887 g.18
Finance, banking and Insurancs
servieas 2,682.306 1.20 3969632 179
Real estates 43 471683 1958 43,341,997 1482
- In which, fndividual bormowing

for accommodalion purpose

and obtain land use rights 21,885.220 8B4 19839 780 B.498
Scientific research and
technology 725,023 020 638,907 029
Adminizirative activities and
suppor services 1,471,431 058 1,563,128 0.70
Activities of the Communist Party,
poliical - social organizations.,
state management, securty and
defonsa 8,198 Q.00 11,628  0.01
Education and vocational training 225 813 009 327,506 0.15
Healthcare and community
development 2814 oM 34,359 0.02
Recraational, culural, sporting
activities 426,897 017 214,768 010
Other senvices 342 673 014 333,18C 0.15
Households services, production
of material products and services
used by househalds 105,302 318 £274 93,833,408 42726
Activities of othar foraign
organizations and offices 3884 00D 8,377 0.00

247,632,796 100 221,961,996 100
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Vietnam Prosperity Joint Stock Commercial Bank BOSTCTD-HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuad)
as at 30 June 2019 and for the six-month peried then ended

11. PROVISION FOR CREDIT LOSSES OF LOANS TO CUSTOMERS
Provision for credit losses of lnans to customers at perind ended is as follaws:

30 June 2019 31 December 2018

VMDY rridlion VND millicn

General provision 1,791,440 1,626,180
Specific provision 2,323,513 2,041,583
4,114,953 3,566,773

Changes in provision for credit losses in in the six-morth period ended 30 June 2018 are as

follows:
General Spacific
provision provision Total
VND million VD imiltfon VN million
Cpening balance 1,525,190 2,041 583 3,066,773
Provision charged in the pericd [Wale 34) 266,250 5,653 683 5,919,333
Change in provision due to re-purchase
|pans from VAMC bonds - 302 841 302 841
Provision used to write-off bad debts T (5,674,594) (5,674,894}
Closing balance 1,791,440 2,323,513 4,114,853
Changes in provision for credit losges in in the six-month period ended 30 June 2018 are as
fol ows:
General Specific
provision provision Total
YWD mmiilion VD mf.f.f.lb_q VND milfion
Opening balance 1,200 685 1 866,708 3,147,404
Frovigion charged in the pariad (Nofz 34) 152,528 4980279 5,132,805
Fravision used to write-off bad debts * (4,724,302} {4.724,302)
Closing balance 1,443,221 2112686 3,565,907
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Vietnam Prosperity Joint Stock Commercial Bank BOS/TCTD-HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 30 June 2019 anc for the six-month perdod then erded

12, INVESTMENT SECURITIES
12.1 Availahle-for-sale securifies

30 June 2019 31 Decembor 2018

VND million VNDE mmillion
Debt securities 48,977,549 49,401,800
Government and municipal securties 24 327,383 23,4746 465
Uent zecurities issued by other domestic credit
institutions 15,803,745 17.087 423
n which: Bonds guaranieed by the Government 3,678,425 6,535,083
Cebt securities issued by domeastic
economic entities 8,746,413 8,827 812
Equity securities 15,357 15,357
Equity securitles issued by domestic
economic entities 15,357 15,357
43,992,006 49,4171 5?
Provislon for available-for-sale securities {198,496) (265,319)
Ciminution provision (53,997) {83,501}
General provision (144, 49%) (181,418)
48,794,410 49.151.838

Face value of bonds pledged for capital mobilization contracts as at 30 June 2019
amounted to VND4 602,568 million (31 December 2018; WMND13,277,938 million).

Face value cf bonds sold under agreemen: to repurchase as at 30 Juna 2015 amounted to
WINDZ,000 000 million (31 December 2018: WND7,550,000 million).

Analysis of availabls-for-sale securitizs by listing status at reporting date is as follows:

30 June 2018 31 December 2018

YND milifan VNG million
Listed bonds 28,006,810 30,009,553
Unlisted bonds (Note 712.4) 16 449 436 15,392,019
Other unlistec debt securities 4,521,303 4,000,228
Listed equity securties = 14,357 15,337
46,992,906 45 417 157
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Vietnam Prosperity Joint Stock Commercial Bank BOSTCTD-HN

MNOTES TO THE CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
as at 30 June 201€ and for the six-month period then endad

12, INVESTMENT SECURITIES (zontinued)
12.2  Held-to-maturity securitics

20 Jurne 2019 37 December 2048

YIND miliion VIND miliian

Governmenl bonds 361,765 403,800
Special bonds 1483328 3,161,133
1,835,084 3,564,933

Provision for held-to-maturity securities {370,515) {790,355)
Provisicn for special bonds {370,515) (790 ,355)
’1.454,5?_9 2,774,578

Special bands as at 20 June 2019 and 31 December 2018 are bonds issued by VAMC with
term of & years and bear no interest.

12.2  Provision for investment securities

Movemnent of provision for Investment securities in the six-month pericd ended 30 June
2018 is as follows:

Available-for-gale  Held-to-rmaturity

securiies secuntias Tolal

VWD miifion - VIND miilicn VD miftion
Opening balance 265,518 740,355 1,055,674
Frovision charged/{reversed)
in the period {B6.823) 546,310 480,087
In which:
Special bonds (MNote 34) - 546,970 546,970
Other securities (Note 30 (G5 823) - (66,823)
Provision usad to writs-of bad
debts - (886,750) (366,750
Closing balance 198,496 370,515 569,011
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Vietnam Prosperity Joint Stock Commercial Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {eontinued)

as at 30 June 2019 and for the six-maonth period then ended

BOSTCTD-HN

12. INVESTMENT SECURITIES {continued)
12.3  Provision for investment securities (continued)
Movernent of provision for investment securities in the six-month perled ended 30 June
2018 is as follows is as follows:
Avalfabie-for-sale Held=fo-maturity
secliilies sectitities Tatal
VND millian VND miltion VN miffian
Cpening halarce 161,117 816,749 477,866
Provision charged in the year 56,737 310,453 267 230
In which:
VAMC bonds (Mote 34) - 370453 370,433
Other securities [Note 30) 56,737 - 56,737
Closing balance 217,854 1,127,242 1,345,096
12.4  Analysis of investment securities by quality

Analysis by cuality of investment szcurities classified as eradit risk bearing assets at the end

of the period is as follows:

36 June 2679

31 December 2018

VIND million VND miltion
Current 16,449,436 156,392,018
Special mention y X
Substandard - =
Doubiful " =
Loss AP E

16,448,436 15,392,019
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Vietnam Prosperity Joint Stock Commercial Bank

MNOTES TO THE CONSOQLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (coninued)

as at 30 June 2019 and for the six-month period then ended

13. LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS

S0 June 2079

BOSTCTO-HM

31 December 2018

Cost

Cost

VMDY muffian % owned YND million % owned

Investments in economic entities
ITRAZO Trangportation Joint Stock

Company (INTRACD J8T) 21 D.64 21 0.54

Dong Xwuan Join Stock Company

(Dong Xuan JSC) 5,000 12.00 5,000 10.00

Banking Training and Consultancy

JEC (BTC) 37 5,20 371 5.28

Vietnam Credit Information JSC (PCE) 3,834 3.28 3,934 3.28

Sai Gon Port Joint-Stock Company 186,276 F.44 1856276 T.44

OPES Insurance Joint-Stock Company 33,000 11.00 33,000 11.00
__227.6802 227,602

Provision for other long-term

investments __67,036) _(36.948)
__160.566 190,654

Changes in provision for long-term investments in the period are as follows;

For the six-month

For the six-month

period snded peviod snded

30 June 2049 30 June 2078

VND million VND mitifan

Opaning balance 36,0458 42 086
Provision chargedireversed) in the pericd

(Note 33) o 30,088 {42,075)

Closing balance 67,036 21
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Vietnam Prosperity Joint Stock Commercial Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEMTS [conminued}
as at 30 Juns 2012 and for the six-month period then ended

14.

14.2

15,

15.1

FIXED ASSETS (continued)

fntangible fixed assefs

Movements of intangible fixed assets in the period are as follows:

Cost

Cpening balance
Purchases in the period
Cther incrazse

Closing balance

Accumulated amortization

Cpening balance
Charge for the period

Clesing balance
Net book value
At the baginning date

At the clasing date

BOSTCTD-HMN
Indsfinite land Computer

e nohts soffware Tatal
VDY miition VND miition YD million
69,147 8ac 142 058,285
- 18,082 18,082

= 23,264 _ 23,254

69,147 831,478 1,000,628
G68 360,897 381,784
- BE,202 55,202
868 446,099 445,957
88279 508,245 577 524
68279 485 374 553,658

Cost of fully-depreciated intangible txed assets which are still in active use as at 30 June
2018 is VND150,445 million (31 December 2018 YND165.400 millian),

OTHER ASSETS

Recajvables

Internal receivables
External receivahbles

- Reoceivables refated fo usance letfers of

credit (Note 17.2)

- Depasits for economic confracts
- Credit risk bearing assefs

- Rapeivables in setflement operaticn

- Advances to suppliors

= Other external receivahies

Purchase of fized assets
Construction in progress

37

30 June 20719 31 December 2078

VNG milfiarn VNO miliion
210,775 126.920
10,831,736 10,158.653
8 167,921 7,730,707
742,433 742,794
165 36,765
167,395 243,669
144,732 135,879
1.608,630 1,272,438
271,355 155,675
2467 40,034
11,316,333 10,482,282




Vietnam Prosperity Joint Stock Commercial Bank

BASTCTD-HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [contnued)

as at 20 June 2019 and for the six-month period then ended

15.

5.1

15.2

3.3

OTHER ASSETS (continuad)

Recefvables (continued)

Analysis of other assets classified as eredit-risk assets oy guality at reparting date is as

follows:

Current

Speclal mention
Substandard
Doubiful

Loss

Accried interest and fee receivables

Interest receivables from deposits

Interest receivables from investment securities
Interest receivables fram credit activities
Interest receivables from derivative instraments
Other fee receivables

Other assels

Materials

Frepaid expenses

Assets in substitution for obligation performance
of securers who has transferred the ownership
to the Bank In compliance with the SB\'s
prevailing regulations

- In which: Real estates

38

30 Jduna 2078 31 December 2018

VD mﬁﬁg_n_ VY rmiflion
- 36,000

155 165

165 36,165

20 June 2078 31 December 2018

VND million VND milior
26,123 12,877
1,070,819 1,694,874
3,122,145 2,522,319
84,158 125,209
106,325 72,385
4,409,570 4,427,765

30 June 20158 31 Decomber 2018

VIND rmiffion VN imillioin
10,356 13,193
2,385,075 1,769,552
644,110 700,474
644,770 700,474
3,039,541 2,473,219
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Vietnam Prosperity Joint Stock Commercial Bank

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS {continusd)
as at 30 June 2018 and for the eix-month period then ended

15.

T5.4

16.

OTHER ASSETS (continued)

FProvision for other asseis

BOSTCTO-HM

Provisior for other assets include provision far impairment of other receivables and zredit
risk bearing assels. Change of provision for other assets in the period are as follows:

Far the si=-maonth
period ended
30 Jdune 2078

VIND miilifan _

Cpaning balanca

Provigion charged in the period

i which:
Charge of provision for other credit nsk
bearng assefs (Mole 34)
Charge of provision for doubtfid dabis
{Mote 33}

Closing balance

25,484
19,601

3184
16,417
46,085

For the six-month
pericd ended

30 Sune 2018
YIND milffon

21 403
0,217

10,277

31,620

Details of provision for other assets are as follows:

Provision for credit risks bearing assets
- Genreral provision

- Spacific provision

Provision for doublul debls

30 June 2019

31 December 2078

VD million VND million
3,349 165
3,184 .

165 165
41,736 25,319
45,085 25,484

AMOUNTS DUE TO THE GOVERNMENT AND THE STATE BANK OF VIETNAM

J0 June 2079

31 December 2018

Eorrowings from the State Bank of Vietnam
Diseount, rediscount of valuable papers
Other borrowings

Deposits of the State Treasury
Deposits of the State Treasury

VIND miilion VIND rmiltfon
20,747 1,781,343

- 1,769,184

20,747 22,159
2,000,000 2,000,000
2,000,000 2,000,000
2,020,747 3,781,343
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Vietnam Prosperity Joint Stock Commercial Bank

BOSTCTD-HM

MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
as at 30 June 2019 and for the eix-month period then ended

17.

7.1

17.2

18.

DEFOSITS AND BORROWINGS FROM FIMANCIAL INSTITUTIONS AND OTHER
CREDIT INSTITUTIONS

Deposits from other credit insiitutions

F0 Jdune 20015 31 December 2017

VMND milifon WIND nritifon
Demand deposits 28,430 3523109
In WND 28,407 3,523 0886
In fareign currencies 23 23
Term deposits 16,560,280 17,622,085
In WMND 16,033,660 14,754 415
In foreign currencies - 466700 28687 670

16,588,310 21,145,194

Borrowings from financial institutions and other credit institutions

30 June 2079 37 December 2018

VN militon VMND milfion
Payables arising from usance letters of credit
(Note 15.1) i) 8,167,710 7,730,682
Borrawings from financial instifutions and
other credit institutions 20,679,907 25 385 575
Ir WND 5,115.476 8470907
In foreign currencies (i 15,864,431 1G,684.668
28,847,617 33,086,257

i} Payablzs related fo usance letters of credit is the value of L."C documents reimbursed by
LIPASLEC Raimbursing Bank after deducting fees.

(i) Borrowings from financial institulions and other credit institutions in farelgn currencies
include WND1,490,%66 million borrowed from Internal Financial Company IFC /31
December.2018: WND3,103.829 million

CUSTOMER DEPOSITS
30 June 2018 31 December 2018
VIND milfion VDY million
Demand deposits 19,782,711 22,630,333
- In¥WND 18,472 064 20,024,737
- In foreigh currencies 1,310,647 2,605 508
Term deposits 176,807,837 147 477,943
- n WND 174,245 491 144,373,908
- I foreign curencies 2562 346 3,104,028
Ceposits for specific purposes 69,658 109,518
- in WWND 57,318 62,262
- Inforeign currencies 12,343 46,256
Margin deposits T02,5893 633,077
- In VND 881,740 348,204
- n fareign cumencies 111,553 84,873
197,362,899 170,850,871
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Vietnam Prosperity Joint Stock Commercial Bank

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continuad)
as 2t 30 June 2019 and for the six-month perod then erded

18.

18.

20.

CUSTOMER DEPOSITS {continued)

BOSITCTD-HN

Analysis of customer deposits by type of customers and by type of entities is as follows:

State-ownad companies
Cne-member limited liability
companies with 100% State
cwnership

Two ur more member limited
liabdity companies with over 50%
State ownership or controlled by
the Stats

Gther limited liakility companizs
Joint stock companies with over
50% State ownership or
controlled by the State

Other joint-stock companies
Partnership companies

Frivatz enterprises

Fareign invested enterprises
Co-operatves and unions of co-
operativa

Haousehald Business and
individuals

Operation administration entity,
the Party, unions anc
associations

Others

OTHER BORROWED AND ENTRUSTED FUNDS

Borrowed and entrusted funds in VNG from

Official Development Assistance (ODA)

VALUABLE PAPERS ISSUED

YValuable papars iasuad by original term are as follows:

Under 12 months
Fram 12 months up to 5 years
From 5 years and above

30 June 2074 31 December 2018
VND million % VND million %
2,266,036 1.15 2413180 1.41
1,493,508 AR < G489 260 0.8
660,221 3,28 208 850 0.12
21,023,748 11.11 19,808,772 11.59
2,874 221 1.46 1,907,339 1.12
38,060,408 1576 7 128,316 21.73
330,458 0147 2,370 0.00
42 918 0.02 76,874 0.04
413,606 021 541,600 0.38
21,452 .01 28,047 0.02
125,451,358 B3.56 105,126,069 61.53
2,685 056 1.36 2,708 DE7 1.58
321,008 0.18 149,268 0.08
197,362,809 100 170,850,871 ~_ 100
30 June 2019 37 Dacember 2018
VD miificr - VAND mifffon
319,874 329,649

30 June 2018

31 Dacember 2018

VND million VD million
5,664,208 7.792919
44,574,797 37,338,755
3,515,808 3,526 362
53,754,809 48,658,036
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Vietnam Prosperity Joint Stock Commercial Bank

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (sontinued)

as at 30 June 2018 and for the siemonth period then ended

20.

21.

21.1

21.2

VALUABLE PAPERS ISSUED (continued)

Types of valuable papers issued are as follows:

Cerificates of depostit to retail customers
Cerificates of deposit to corporate customers
Eonds ()

BOSTCTD-HN

30 June 2019 31 December 2018

VMND million VND million

3,677,813 10,005,918
28,248 85D 23,374,814
21,527,037 16,277,204
53,3 54,208 43,653,1135

.7} Including bonds with the amaunt of VND2, 876,960 million eligible to be the Bank's cwn
capital (31 December 2018; VND2, 876960 million).

OTHER LIABILITIES

interest and fees payable

Intarast payables for customer term deposts

Interest payables for customer savirg deposits

Interast payables for valuable papers issued

Interast payables for borrowirgs from financial

irstitutions and other credit institutions
Interest payables for other borrowed and
entrusted funds

Interest payables for derivative financial
instrumenis

Fee payahles

Other liabflities

Internal payables
Payables io employees

External payables

Advances from custocmers

Uneamed inccme

Transfer payment awaiting settlement
Taxes payable to the State Budget (Note 22)
Payables in settlement operation

Fayables 1o suppliers

Cther liahilities

42

20 June 2018

31 December 2018

VND miliian = VIND milifan
1,462 699 1,153,443
2,547 632 1,755,189
1.947 086 2,028 502

227,298 200,434
13,511 19,114
106,923 105,448
920 781
6,299,977 5,262,931
30 Jdune 2009 31 Dogaimber 2018
VIND miliion VD mriflion
439,516 423,965
4328 516 423 055
4,689,609 4,984,233
1,327 392 1,260 540
251 641 189,935
379,230 553,217
572 182 768 585
889,221 537 405
142,930 223702
1,327,013 1,380,339
5,329,125 5408198




Vietnam Prosperity Joint Stock Commercial Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinuad)
as 2t 30 June 2019 and for the six-month period then ended

BOSTCTD-HN

22. TAXES AND OTHER QOBLIGATIONS TO THE S5TATE BUDGET
_ Movements in the pariod
Opening balance Pavahles Faid  Closing balance
VND indifion — WVND millian VND il YIND milfion
Value added tax 29.901 125,065 {120, 007) 34,959
Comorate income tax 88,000 871,459 (1.061,820) 457 B39
Cther taxes 71,694 280,769 (3128790 39,584
o 709,595 1,277,293 (1,494,708) o = 572,182
22.1  Current corporate income tax
The Bank has the obligation to pay corporate income tax (*CIT"} at the rate of 20% of taxable
proflis according to Circular No. 78/2014/11-B1C which became effective from 2 August 2014,
The Bank's tax -eports are subject to examination by the fax authorities, Because the
application of tax laws and regulations to many ‘ypes of transactions is susceptible to
varying interpretations, amount reporled in the consclicated financial staterments could be
changed at a later date upon final determination by the tax authorities,
Currant corporate income tax payables are determined based on taxable income of the
year. Taxable income differs frem the one reported in the consolidated income staterment
since taxable income excludes incomes which are taxable or expenses which are deducted
n prior years due to the differences betwsen the Bank's accounting policies and the tax
‘egulations, and also excludes non-taxable income and non-deductible expenses. The
current corporate income tax payshle of the Ban< is calculated based on the statutory tax
-ates applicable at the end of the pariod.
Provision for current income tax expense is estimated as follows:
For tha she- For e six-
momnth period menth period
ended ended
30 June 2079 30 June 2018
_ VNDmition — VND million
Profit before tax 4,342 611 4,375,520
Flusiinus)
- Man-taxable income 2 (245)
- Loss of subsidiaries 13,633 -
- Other additions 342 360
-  Expenses arising from consolidation (208} -
Estimated taxable income 4,356,380 4,375,035
Estimated income tax expense Uging
prevailing tax rate 871,276 a875.007
Adjustrent of tax expenses in previous years 183 (480)
Income tax expense for the period 871,459 874,527
Income tax payable at the beginning of the period 688,000 655,739
Income tax paid in the period (1,061,820) (1,000, r85)
Current income tax payable at the end of the period 497,639 529,501
22.2  Defarred income tax

Mo deferred tax was recognized In the period since there was no material temporary
differenca between the camying value and the tax base of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statzments.
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Vietnam Prosperity Joint Stock Commercial Bank BOS/TC D

NOTES TO THE CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS rcontinued)
as at 30 June 2019 and for tha six-month period then ended

23, OWNERS' EQUITY AND RESERVES (continued)

23.2 Eguity
30 June 2018 31 December 2018
Mumber Face valve Mumbear Face valfue
Shares ~ VNDmillion  Shares  VND miflion

Mumber of registerad
charas 2,529,967 966 25,280,680 2,525 967 966 23,238 680
Mumber of shares issyed 2,529 957 966 25208 B0 2 528 LE7 965 25,299 680
- Ordinary shares 2,486,748 366 24,567 484 2 456 748 3686 24 567,484
- Prefarence shares (*) 73,218,600 732 186 73,299, 600 732198
Numker of repurchased
shares as treasury
shares {73.279,600) {732,198) (732719.600) {F32.196)
- Ordinary shares () (73 219.600) (732,195) (73 .219.600) (732,196)
Mumber of gshares in
circulation 2,458 748 266 74 5FT AB4 2 456,748 366 24 567 484
- Ordfinary shares 2,456 748 366 24 BB7 484 2 456 748 265 24, 567 484

The face value of each share of the Bank Is VND10,000.

I} Preference shares issued oy the Bank are preference dividend shares whiczh earn stabls
annual dividend anc have no votng rights. On 8 July 2018, the Bank repurchased these
preference shares as treasury shares in accordance wilth Cesision No, 379/2018/Q0-
HOQT dated 4 June 2018 by the 3card of Directors. After repurchase, these treasury
shares do not have characteristics of praference shares,

24. BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

Forthe six-monfft  For the six-monih

hetied ended period ended
30 June 2012 30 June 2018
Profit attributed fo ordinary shareholders of the
Bank (VND milion) 34711562 3,500,883
VWeighted average number of ordinary shares
(Share) 2456 748 366 2423083272
Baslc eamings per share (VD) 1,413 1,445

Profit attributed ta ordinary sharshalders is equal to the consolidated profit after tax minus
I-} dividends on preference shares (if any).

The basic earnings per share for the prior period have been restated due to the effect of the
issuance of bonus shares to existing sharehelders issuing shares frem the reserve fund to
supplement charter capital anc equity surplus and incrzase the profit from retained eamings
in the period from 30 June 2018 to 20 June 2019,

Atthe end of the period, there are no events and situations fo show dilutad eamings per
share for the period.
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Vietnam Prosperity Joint Stock Commercial Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

as at 20 Jume 2019 and for the six-manth period then endad

25,

26,

27.

INTEREST AND SIMILAR INCOME

Interest income from deposits

Interest income from loans to customers

Interest income from securities held for trading

and invesiment securities

- Interest income from soecurities
hefd-far-traching

= rterest income from invesiment securities

Interest income from dabts purchazed

Income from cuaraniee activities

Other income from credit activities

INTEREST AND SIMILAR EXPENSES

Interast expenses for deposits

Interest expenses for borrowings

Interest expenses for valuable papers issued
Other expenses for credit activities

NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

Fee and commission income

Setilement and treasury services

Advisory activities

Income from business and nsurance services
Cther services

Fee and commission expenses
Settlemeant services and freasury services
Advisory activities

Brokerage fees

Cther expenses

46

For the six-month

BOS/TCTD

Far the six-rnorith

penod ended period ended
30 June 2079 30 June 2018
VMDD mitian D m.‘m’o.'?_
150,650 135 780
20,695,197 16,782 130
1.831 671 2,044 050
140 487 145509
1,691,184 1,838,541

- 14 B85

102,347 70,857
710,679 678,181
23,490._&_14 19,?25,?34_

For the aix-month
pariod ended

Forthe six-month
period anded

30 dune 2078 20 June 2018
VND miliion VD miilion
5,819,348 3,946 456
842 ¥73 479,189
2,031,113 2840612
246,004 273,037
9,039,236 7,538,274

For the six-month
period ended
30 June 2019

For the six-month
perod ended
30 June 2018

VMND mitlion VND million
2,486,950 1,697,398
322,797 187,095
116,214 52,772
1,368,528 1,008,413
678,417 451,119
(1,253,311 (1,093,163)
{118 083} (128,392
(2,833} (5,120
(785 225) (687,327)
(347 170 (272,323)
1,233,639 604,235




Vietnam Prosperity Joint Stock Commercial Bank

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 30.June 2019 and for the six-month perdod then ended

28.

29,

20.

NET {LCS5)/GAIN FROM TRADING OF FOREIGHN CURRENCIES

For the six-month

period endead

30 June 20712

VD miilfon

Income from trading of forelgn currencles 326,933
Inceme from spot trading of foreign currencies 131,341
Inceme from gold trading 2478
Income from trading of monetary derivatves 183,114
Expenses for trading of foreign currencies {362,913)
Expenses for spot trading of foreign cumencies {42 34€)
Expensas for gold trading {10,825)
Expensas for trading of monetary derivatives (309,74Z)
(35,980)

BOS/TCTD

For tha six-month
perod ended
30 June 2018

VG miflion

368,057
169,358

2818
192 880

(331,659)
(67 5E6)
i6,602)
(267 4591)

33,398

NET (LOSS)/GAIN FROM SECURITIES HELD FOR TRADING

Far the shv-month

For ihe six-month

poariod ended period endad

20 June 2079 30 June 2018

VMND rallion YND million

Income from tradirg of securities held for trading 161,174 93,282

Expensas for trading of securities held for frading (1285,586) (131,833)
Frovisicn expensel(reverse) for securities neld for

trading (Nots 8.1) 20,632 (44,158)

56,210 {82,569)

NET GAIN FROM INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Faor the six-maonth

For the siv-monih

period ended penod endad

3 Jdune 2019 30 Jurne 2018

VD million VND mitlion

Income fram trading of investment securitias 251,678 303,754

Expenses for trading of investment securities (42 674) (53.629)
Frovision {(charged)/reversad for investmeant

securities (Nofe 72.3) _ ©6823 (56,737)

275,827 183,318
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Vietnam Prosperity Joint Stock Commercial Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMNGIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

as at 30 June 2019 and for the six-month perod then ended

31,

32,

NET GAIN FROM OTHER OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Other operating income

Income from other derivatives

Bac debt recoveries

Ircome from disposal of fixed assets
Ircome from dispaszal ef other assets
Ircome from debt purchase astivities
Ircome from contracts penalty receivables
Support received and ather income

Other operating expenses
Expenses for other derivatives
Expenses for disposal of other assets

Oiher expenses

For the six=-marnti

BOS/TCTD

Far the sie-month

perad endead perfod ended
30 June 2079 30 June 2018
VNE miflion YIND milfion
1,196,956 1,862.219
219,088 117 342

747 613 733667
1,137 386

12,6802 19,915
136,391 65.351
11,508 28,548
68,616 247 012
{345,743) (287,292)
{243.448) {152,398)
(8,809) (19,628}

. (93,396) (115,265)
851,213 1,574,927

INCOME FROM INVESTMENTS IN OTHER ENTITIES

Dividend income

48

Faor the six-month

Far the six-menth

period ended period ended
30 June 2018 a0 June 2018
VNG mitiion VN millfan

4 845

- 845
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Vietnam Prosperity Joint Stock Commercial Bank

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conflnued)

as &t 30 June 2019 and for the six-month period then ended

33.

34.

OPERATING EXPENSES

Tax, duties and fees

Parsonnel expenses

In which:

Salary and allowances
Expenses related to salary
Subsidy

Cther allowances

Fixed asset expenses

In which:

Capreciation and amortization of fixed assets
Operating leases

Administrative expenses
frr wefniczhr:
Expenses cn per diem

Other provision expenses

- Heversal of provision for other long-tarm
investments (Nole 13)

= Charge of provision for doubtful debis
{Note T5.4)

Insurance fee for customer deposits

Other operating expenses

PROVISION EXPENMSE FOR CREDIT LOSSES

Frovision expense for loans to customers (Aofe 17)
Frovision expense for other credit risk assets (Mofe
15.4)

Fravision expense for debt purchase

Frovision reversed for other assets (MNotz 12.3)

48

For the six-montf

BOSTCTD

Far the six-month

perod ended period ended
30 June 2018 30 June 2048
VIND rriffion YND mff.".fqg
1,809 111,234

3,637 677 2,743,517
3,226 582 2,387 185
250,046 207,340
85,801 78,5588
75248 60,404
777,459 636,707
180,404 141,266
4885748 321178
729,207 562,164
26277 20,262
46,505 (31,858)
0085 (42 D7 5)
16477 10,217
B5,862 78,467
744,970 588,427
6,019,579 4,638,648

For the six-tmonth

For the six-manth

perfod ended period ended
a0 Jurne 2018 30 Jdune 2018
VND million YND millicn
5919833 5132805
3,184 =

- 3,188

546,910 310,493
6,470,027 5,446,496
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Vietnam Prosperity Joint Stock Commercial Bank

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 30 June 2018 and for the six-month period then ended

35,

36.

37.

37.1

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and eash squivalents included in the consolidated cash flow statement comprise the

following amounts on the consolidated balanca shaet:

Cash and cash equivalents on hand
Balances with the SEW

Demand accounts at cther credit institutions
Placemenis with other credit institutions with
ariginal term of three manths or less

EMPLOYEES' REMUNERATIONS

. Total average number of employees
(parsens) fonly official employees)

Il. Employees’ remuneration (VND millior)

Total salary fund
Other reruneration

1

2

3. Total remuneration {1+2)
4. Awverage monthly salary
5

Average monthly remuneration

COLLATERAL AND MORTGAGES

BOS/TCTD

30 June 2079 a0 June 20718
VND mitlion VD milfinn
2,443 631 2467 514
6,760 928 3,179,428
2065 652 3,271,683
16,291,400 14,?65,Q4E
26,561 ,_EEIE 23,683,665

Far the six-monif

rar the six-month

period ended period endad

30 June 2099 30 June 2018

- YND milifan VND mitlfon
27,233 24,531

3,181,104 2,387 675
232,302 189,503
3423406 2577178

20.00 16,22

21.00 17.51

Assets, valuable papers received for mortgage, pledge and discount, rediscount

Details of customers’ collateral and mortgages at the Bank as at the end of the period are as

follows:

Real estates
Maohile assets
Valuable papers

Cihers

50

Book value

30 June 2078 37 December 20718
VWD milfion YD miifion
236,769,120 223 266 429
44 984 450 43 147 182
147,042 834 126 804,811
176,992 863 130 344 800
605,789, 367 523,563,232
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Vietnam Prosperity Joint Stock Commercial Bank BOSTCTD

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {cantinued)
as at 30 June 2019 and for the six-manth period then ended

a7 COLLATERAL AND MORTGAGES (continued)

37.1 Assets, valuable papers received for mortgage, pledge and discount. rediscount

‘continued)
Assets, valuable papers pledged, pledged and discounted taken from olher credit
institutions
Face valia L
30 June 2218 31 December 2018
VND miiffon VIND» mitifan
Government bonds purchased under
agresmants to resell 200,000 —

37.2  Assets, valuable papers for martgage, piedge and discount, rediscount

Details of assets, valuable papers for mortgege, pledge and discount, rediscount as at the
end af the period are as below:

30 June 2078 31 December 2018

o YMND miliion VND milifan
Valuable papers pledged or mortgaged 4,902 568 13,683,617
Valuable papers sold under agreemerts o
repurchase 2,000,000 7.550.000
Cther assets for mortgage, pledge and
discount, redizcount _24,332.324 21,708,817
31,285,392 42942 334

38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
Detail of contingent liabllities and commitments as at 30 June 2019 are as follows:

A0 June 2018 39 Decambar 2018

WND million YIND mriffion

Credit guzrantses 15,459 20,626
Forsign exchange commitments 50,186,823 66,626,741
- Foreign exchange commitments - buy 2 047 2917 1,883,073
- Foreign exchangs commitiments - sell 2,045,053 1,582 743
- Swvap contracts 56,094 479 63,460,925
Irevocable loan commitments - 1.860
Letters of credit 16,240,350 14,799,169
Cther guarantees 16,620,123 13,860,017
- Payment ouarantoes 3,876,438 2,285 892
- Confract performance guaranises 4 555 904 3415185
- Tender guaranioos 379 3571 260,929
- Other guarantees 7,807,930 7,788,018
Cther commitrients 133,048,191 111,187,304
226,111,946 206,508,717

Minus: Margin deposits (Note 13) (702,693) (833,077)
Contingent liabilities and commitments 225,409,253 205,872,640

a1
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Vietnam Prosperity Joint Stock Commercial Bank BOS/TCTD

NOTEES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 30 June 2018 and for the six-month period then ended

39,

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related party transactions include all transzctions undartaken with other padies to which the
Bank is related. A party is considered to be related if the party has ability to control or to
influence other parties in making decision of financial policles ane cperational activities. &
party is related to the Bank if:

ta) Dirsctly, or indirectly through one or mare Intermeadizries, the party:

» Controls, or is coatrolied by, or is under common control with the Bank (including
parents and subsidiaries);

¥+ Has an interest {owning 5% or more of the charesr capital or voting share capital) in
the Bank that gives it significant influence aver the Bank;

#=  Has joinl conbral over the Bank.

(b} The party is a joint venture in which the Banl is a venture or an sssociate {owning over
11% of the charter capital vr voling share capital, bus is not a subsidiary of the Bank);

(e} The sarty is & member of the key management pe-sonnel of the Bank;
(d] The oarty is & close mamber of the family of any irdividual referred to in (a) or {c); or

() The party is a company that is controlled, jeintly controlled or significantly influenced by,
or for which significant vofing power in such company resides with, directly ar indirectly,
any individual referred to in (¢} or {d).

Significant transactiors of the Bank with its relatec parties in the year are as fallows:

Amount
Forthe six-month  For the six-moiih
panod ehded period ended
30 June 2079 30 June 2078
Related parties Transactions VND million VND million
Members of the Soard i
of Management, Board Remuneration expenses (32,638) (42.827)
of Supervision and Interest expenses for
Board of Dirsctors deposits of management (251) (1,780}

Receivables and payables with related parties as at 20 June 2019 and 31 Decembar 2018
arz as follows:

Receivables/Payablzs
30 June 2018 31 December 2018
Related parties Bafances VND million VND million
Members of the Board
of Management, Board
of Supervision and
Boarg of Directors Deposits at the Bank 42,418 53314
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Vietnam Prosperity Joint Stock Commercial Bank BOSTCTD

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 30 June 2019 anc for the six-month perod then ended

40.

41,

CONCENTRATION OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS BY
GEOGRAPHICAL REGIONS

Concentration of counterparties of the Bank and its subsidiaries oy gecgraphical regions as
at 30 June 20132 are as follows:

Domestic Farefgn Total
VAT million VIO mﬂfﬁm] VIND million
Loans to customers and credit granting
10 other credit instiutions 280,287 650 119 250,257,809
Total fund maobilization 281,340,644 17 554,112 708 894 755
Cradit commitments and other
guarantzes 32,875,922 - 32,875,932
Dedvative insl:uments 100,215 282 100,607
Securities held tor trading and
investmant securities 55,738,842 4 55,736 B42

FINANCIAL RISK MAMAGEMENT FOLICIES

The Bank has exposure fe the following risks from financial instruments:
= credit nsk;
b liquidity risk; and

o market risk.

This note presents information about the Bank's exposure o each of the above risks, the
Bank's objectives, policies and proceszes for measuring and managing rigk, and the Bank's
management of capital,

Risk management framework

The Board of Direclors ("BOD") has overall responsibility for the establishment and
oversight of risk management framework and s ultimacely responsible for the quality and
effectiveness of the Bank's risk management. To facilitate this oversight function, the Bank's
BOD has established an Assets and Liabilities Committee ("ALCO") and a Risk Committes
{"RCO") which ara responsible for developing and monitoring key risk management policies
for specific areas authorzed by the BOD and periodically reporting {o the BOD on their
activities, These committees include both voting and non-voting members.

The Bank's risk management framewcrk |s established to form key orinciples in managing
and controlling significant risks arising from the Bank's activities. Based ar this, specific
oolicies and regu’ations for each type of rigk are establiched to assist the Bank in analyzing
and determining appropriate risk limits, controlling and monitering measures and ensuring
adherence to the limits.

Risk management poicies and systems are reviewed regularly to refect charges in market
conditions, products and services offered. The Bank, through its training and managemant
standards and procedures, aims o develop a disciplined and constructive control
envirenment, in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.
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Vietnam Prosperity Joint Stock Commercial Bank BOS/TCTD

MNOTES TO THE CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuad)
as at 30 June 201% and for the six-manth periad then ended

41.

41.1

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (continued)

Crodit risk

The Bank is subject to eredit sk through its lozns to custorers, placements with and loans
to other banks and investments in compecrate bonds and in cases where it acts as an
intermediary on behalf of customers or other third parties or issues guarantees. Cradit risk
arises wnen a customer, obligor or partner fails to perform or improperly performs or does
not fulfill their obligations under the commitments and agreements entered into with the
Bank. The Bank's primary exposure ¢ credit risk arises through its lnans and advances to
corporates and retall customers and investmants in corporate bonds. The amount of credit
exposure in this regard is represented by the carrying amounts of the assets on the
consolidated balance sheet. In additior, the Bank is exposcd to off balance sheet cradit risk
through guarantees commitments, letters of credit and derivatives issued,

Credif risk management

Crecit rick is the one that exerts the largest impact on the Bank's income and capital. The
Bank has established & credil risk appefite on the basis of managing credit activities in 3
oruderl manner and pre-determined credit imits inc uding the credit concentration risk limits
and adhering to the Bank's risk tolerance. In principle the Bank identifies and manages
credt risk in all activiies and products with pofential credit risk and ensures that the Bank
provides new products only 'when suffizient regulations and procedures relsted to new
products or operation in new markets in order to identify, measure, evaluate, montor and
contral critical exposure risks are in place. To keeo credit risks under control, the Bank's
policy is to engage in fransactions with reliable partners, and request its partners to take
Jquarantee megsures as and when required

The crecit risk management system is operating based on the principles of independence
and cenl-alizatior. Accordingly, the develapment of ris« management policies, determination
of risk limits and risk moritoring, risk reporing and risk control are implemented
independently and centrally at the Risk Managemen: Division. The reports from the Risk
Management Division are a basis for RCO to issue key credit decisiors.

The Bank measures credit risks, makes allowances and complies with safe ratios ‘or loan
and advances fto custcmers and to other credit institutions in aceordznce with relzvart
requlations of the SBY,

The Bank's overall approach to credit risk = a risk-basad approach. Accordingly, sredi
approval or credit valuation decisions as well as the behavioral methods in monitoring and
classifying credits and controlling credit rigks are being designed following the risk levals of
customers. To this end, key activities being implemented by the Bank include the followings:

b+ Focusing on completion of data infrastructure used for developing credt rating and risk
classification systemes in aseardancs with intemational standards;

»  Developing and completing the credit rating system and the scorecard systam:

#  Gathering and reviewing credit policies/documents of the whale system to reassess the
integrity and responsiveness to the requrements specified in the policies of Risk
Managament Framewark:

b+ Completing the credit quality manitoring mechanism for the entire lifa cycle of 2 loan:
»  Developing an ea‘ly credit risk warning systerm; and
» Developing a debl recovery and restructuring system.

54

Lo

F fu



Vietnam Prosperity Joint Stock Commercial Bank

MOTES TO THE CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 30 June 2019 and for the six-month period then endzd

41.

41.1

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk {continued)

The maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other credit

enhancernents

The maximum exposures to credit risk relating to asset groups, which are squivalent to their

carrying values in the consolidated balanca sneet, are listed below:

BOS/TCTD

Fast due
and
Past due but  individually
Not past dve  nof impaired impairad Tofal
VND milion _ VYND million VNG miffion VNG miftion
Placements with and credit
granting to other credit
institutions 19,982 265 - - 19,832 265
= Plavements with other credit
institutions 17357252 = - 17357252
- Credit granfing fo otfier
credit institutions 2625013 - - 2625013
ESecurities held for trading 4 908 642 - - 4 90E 642
Lozns to customers 226628619 2,774,166 18,230,009 247,632,796
Investment securilies S0,828,000 - - 50,828,000
- Available-for-zale secinities 489082 9086 = - 488828086
- Held-fo-matwity securiies 1,835 084 - - 1,835 004
Other assels 18,664,325 - 101,118 18,785,444
Total 321,011,851 2,774,168 5 18,331,128 342 117,147

The above (able presents the worst scenario in which the Bank will incur the maximum
cradit exposures as at 30 June 2018, without taking into account of any collateral hald or
thair credit enhancemesnt.

Ihe Eank’s financial assets which are past due are classified in compliance with the
quantitative method as preseribed in Circular No. 02/2013/TT-MHMNM and Circular Mo,
2ERI2009/TT-BTC.

The financial assels are past due but not impalred due to the Bank is currently haolding the
sufficient colateral assets to cover for credit losses in accordance with the current
regulations of the SBY.

The Bank Is currently holding cellaterzl In the form of real estates, meobile assets, valuable
papers and other types Tor the above collateral. However, It has not beer able to determine
the fair value of such assets due to the inadequacy of specific quidznce from the SBV and
other autharities nor necessary market information.
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Vietnam Prosperity Joint Stock Commercial Bank BOS/TCTD

MOTES TO THE CONSCLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS {confinued)
as at 20 Junz 20190 and for the six-maonth period then ended

41,

41.2

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (continued)

Markef risk

Market risk is risk of losses due to unexpected and adverse changes in market price faciors
(including interest rates, exchange rates, equity prices, commedity price, etc.) that will affect
thz Bank’s income and capital.

Market risk management

WMarket risk management is implemented by the Market and Fl Risk Department under the
Risk Management Division. The Market and F| Risk Department s responsible for
develeping of market risk management policies and processes, designing measurement
instruments, proposing independent markst risks limits 10 high level of management for
approval and menitoring marke: risks limit on daily/monthly basis aceording to the Bank's
regulations,

In 2017, market risk managament polcizs were revised to introduce a new risk
management model. Market risk management functions have been segregaled amongst
different units and committees, using three lines of defense model, Market Risk Sub-
committee (MACD) under Risk Committee (RCO) was establishec to propose and analyze
in-depth market risk, liquidity risk and counterparty risk issues. Also, internal document
which requires ssgregation between Trading Book and Banking Book has been issued in
accorcance with the SBY's reguafion and Basel || standards, ensuring to manage the
model by risk appetize. Srategy of each Unit of Financial Markets Division is also issued in
the year. Accordingly, business sirateqy, hedging strategy and analysis of potential risks
have been clearly regulated for each portfolin. Valuation methodology is alsa established in
accoraance with IFRS, which enables the Bank to determine fair value of financial
instruments aporopristely.

In 2018, the regulation that specifies and appraves VPBank's transaction limits with financial
institution was amended and issued by the Risk Committee (RCO), which provides specific
limits for market risk and counterparty risk involved transactions, ensuring that all risk
factors are teken into account in the granting limits process.

All types of market risk of the Bank (include curency risk, interest rate risk, price risk, option
risk, volatility sk, credit spread risk and market liquicity risk) are subject to in-depth
analysis, identification and quantification with internal limits system. Risk monitering and
controlling that includes regular (normally daily} risk reporting process and escalations
process in case of any viclations.

The system of limits relating to marke: rsks is established based on 2 methods: top-down
method which is based on the Bank's risk appetite, the SBV's regulations ard agreements

with strategic partners and bottorm-up method which is based on specific needs of operation
urits and risk-profit analysis,

The Bank conducts zaleulations of market risk capital charge in accardance to Szsel I
requirements monthly.
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Vietnam Prosperity Joint Stock Commercial Bank BOS/TCTD-HN

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 30 June 2019 and for the six-month period ihen ended

41.

41.2

(b)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT PCOLICIES (continued)
Market visk (continued)
Currency risk

Currency risk (commonly referred to as exchange-rate risk) is the risk of losses due to
negative changes in the fair value of positions measured in local currency due to exchange
rate fluctuations. Foreign currency positions as well as positions in gold and other precious
metals bear exchange rate risk. Exchange rate risk arises in case the portfolio or specific
position contains spot or fulure cash flows denominated or indexed to currency other than
local currency. Exchange rate risk ariginates hoth in Trading Book and Banking Book.
Exchange rate risk directly affects the balance sheel and income statement since assets,
liabilitizs and earnings in foreign currercy need to be converied into the reference CUITEMNCY.

Currency risk management

Exchange rate risk is managed by the means of limits on open FX pasition in every currency
as well as total open FX position. The Banks managemenl has set limits on position for
each currency in accordance with the Bank’s business strategy and the SBV's regulations,
VNLY is the majer currency of transactions within the Bank; USD is transacted by loans,
deposits and derivatives; other currencies are very Hny proportion of the Bank's assets and
liabilities. Open currency pesifions are monitored on a daily basis and hedging strategies
uzed to ensure postions are maintained within established limits.

Exchange rates of major cumrencies as at the reporting date are presentec in Mole 46
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Vietnam Prosperity Joint Stock Commercial Bank BOSTCTD-HN

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuad)
as st 30 June 2012 and for the six-month period then erded

41.

41.2

(c)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (confinued)
Market risk (continded)
Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they
fall due, or, tha risk that the Bark might have to face unacceptable material losses in crder
to meet those obligations. Liguidity risk may lzad to negative effect on the Bank's profit,
reputation, equity, even causes the Bank's bankruptcy.

Liguicdity Hsk management

The Bank manages the liquidity of the entire Bank on gach of the main types of currency
(WMND, U3D) on the mechanism, process of regulating, moniloring and managing liguicity as
specified in the policies and regulations, process of liquidity managemeni. Accordingly,
liguidity risk management of the Bank is implemented through the strangthened cooperation
betwean three divisions: Finance, Risk Managemzant and Financ'al Market. In particular, the
Finance Market Divislon plays the leading role in managsment of short-term liguidity and the
Finance Division plays the leading role in management of long-term liquidity in accordance
with the Bank's risk appetite, risk criteria, risk strategy and liguidity management strategy
which ara estahlishad by the Risk Managament Division.

The Bark maintains a specific portfolic and volume of high-lquidation assets, which may
include but not limited to cash, gold, interbank depesits, Government bonds and other high-
liguidation assets in orde’ to meet its lizbilitizs when due under both normal and stressed
conditions, without incurring  unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Bank's
reputation. The Bank will establish specific liquidity gap and follow stricily on each period
based on Assets and Liabilities structure,

The Bark understands the interrelation of credit risk and market risk and how they may
have impacts on the Bank’s liquidity. The Bank also realizes that liquidity risks come from
two sides of its balance sheet. Thersfore, the Bank's approach to managing liquidity 1s to
constantly focus on diversification of investment and credit activities and increases of
accessikility o capital markets by various fund raizing tools and products.

The Bank adopts beth of the commaon approaches to managing lguidity, namely Stock
Approach and Flow Approash. Accordingly, the Bank monitors on a daily basis the
compliance with adeguate liquidity ratios and forecasts movements of cash flows which may
have Impact on the Bank's liquidity position in th2 future fo ensure compliance at any tirme
with all regulations of the SBY as well as its internal requlaticns.

Ligquidity risk limits are established basad on results of the Bank's liquidity forecast in normal
and stressed market conditions. Regular liquidity stress testing is conducted under a variety
of scenzrios covering adverse conditions. Al the same time, the Bank also 15sUes specific
regulations on a Liquidity Contingency Plan ("LCP") which clearly spzcifies the roles and
responsibilities of each unit and incividual and a coordiration process far implemertation
when there appear signs of a possible stressed liquidity svent.

The follewing table provides an analysis of the assets and liabilities of the Bank into re'evant

maturity groupings based on the remaining pericd from the consolidated balance sheet dale
to repayment dats.
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Vietnam Prosperity Joint Stock Commercial Bank BOS/TCTD-HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 30 June 2018 and for the six-month period then snded

41,

41.2

(d)

42,

FINMANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (continued)
Markat risk (confinaead)
Other rmarket price risk

Other than the assets and liabilities presented above, the Bank and its subsidiaries are not
exposed to other market price risks with risk levels accounting for 5% of the Bank and its
subsidiaries’ net income or with value of relsting assete/liahiliies accounting for 5% of the
Bank and its subsidiaries’ total assets.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIAEILITIES

On 3 Nowvember 2005, the Ministry of Finance lssusd Clrcular Mo, 2102009/TT-BTC
providing gudanze for the adoption in Vietnam of the Intermnational Financial Reporting
Standards on presentation and disclosures of financial instruments (“Circular 2107 with
effectiveness from financial years beginning an or after 1 January 2011,

The Circular 210 cnly regulates the preseniation of financial statements and disclosures
financial instruments, therefors, the below definitions of finencial assets, financial habilities
and other relating definitions are applied solely for the preparation of this Nede. The Bank's
assets and abilities are still recognized and recorded in accordance with Visthamese
#ccounting Standards, Accountng System for Credit Institutions, regulations of the State

Bank of Vietnam and statufory requirements relevant to preparation and presantation of the
cansolidated financial statements.

Financial assets

Under Circular 213, financial assets of the Bank include balance with the SBY and
placement with other credit institutions, loans to customers and credit grantng to other
institutions, investment security, ofher receivables and currency dervative contracts.

Financia! assets within the scope of Circular 210, for disclosures in the notes to lhe
consalidated financial statements, ara classified into either of the followings;

B Financial asset st fair value through profit or loss

Financial asset at fair value through prefit and loss is a financial asset that meets sither
of the following conditions:

a) A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

¥ It is acquired ar incurred principally for the purpose of reselling or repurchasing it
in the near tarm;

¢ Therz iz evidence of a rerent astual pattern of shortterm profit-taking: or

¥ It is a derivalive [except derivative that is 2 financial guarantee contract or
effective hecging instrument).

b}  Upoen initial recognition, it is designated by the entity as at fair value through profit or
|DEE.
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Vietnam Prosperity Joint Stock Commercial Bank BOSTCTD-HN

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
as 2t 30 June 2018 and for the six-month pericd then ended

42, FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCGIAL LIABILITIES (continusd)

Financial aszets (continuad)
= Heild fo matunfy investmenis

Held to maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with determinable

payments and fixed maturity that an entity has the positive intention and ability to hold to
maturity cther than:

a} Those that the entity uzon initial rezognition designates as at fair value through
profit or loss;

b} Those that the entity designates as availabla for szle;

¢} Those mee: the definitian of loans and receivahles

= loans and receivables:
Loans and receivables are non-derivative wilh fixed payments or can be recognized and
arz not quoted on the market, unless:

ay Those that the Bank intends to sell immediately or in the near Tulure are classified
as asgsets held for trading purposes, and ofhers that at the same time of initial

recagnition that the entity classified at fair value according to result of income
statement;

b} Those that the Bank classifies as available-for-sale at the time of initial recognitian:
or

¢l Those that the holdars may not recover most of the initial investment cost, not due
to the impairment of the credit quality and are classified a= available-for-sale.

= Available-for-zale financial assets

Available for sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are
designated as available for sale ar are not classified as:

a) Loans and recevables:
b) Heald-to-maturity invesiments;

¢] Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.



Vietnam Prosperity Joint Stock Commercial Bank BOSTCTD-HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 30 June 2019 and for the six-month perod then erded

42. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (continued)

Financial liabilities

According o Circular 210 financial liabilities of the Bank includes deposts and borrowings
from other ingtitutions, valuable papers issued and other financial liabilities.

“inancial liabilities within the scope of Circular 210, far disclosures in the notes to the
consolidated financal statements, are classified into either of the followings:

b Fimancial lfability a! fair value through profit or foss:

Financial liability at fair value through profit and loss is a fnancial iability that meets
either of the following conditions:

a) It is classeified as held for trading. A fnancial liability is classified as held for trading
if.

¥ It s acquirsd or incurred principally for the purpose of reselling or repurchasing it
in the near term;

v There is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking: or

¥ It is & derivative [except derlvative that is a financial guarantee contract or
effective hedging instrumens).

b}  Upon inltial recognition, it is designated by the entity as at fair value through profit or
loss.

= Financial fabilities at amortized cost:

Financial liabilities that are nol classified as at fair value through profit or loss are
c'assified as at amortized cost,

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financal assets and financial liabilities are offsel and the net amount reported in the
consolidated balance sheet if and only if there is a currently enfaresable legal right to offset
the recognized amounts and fhere is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realize the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously
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Vietnam Prosperity Joint Stock Commercial Bank BOSTCTD-HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 30 June 2012 and for the six-month period then ended

43. SEGMENT INFORMATION

A segment iz a component determined separately by the Bank which is engaged in
providing related products or services (buginess segment) or providing preduets or scrvices
in & particular economic environment (geographical segment), that is subject to risks and
returns that are different from those of other segments.

43.1  The primary segment information by business segment

For management purpose, the Bank and its subsidiares have estzblished their apesation in
the following business segments:

Eanking and Provide the fallowing products and services to customers:
Riedkgmuting Mobilizing deposits;

- Providing crecit;

- Wire trensfer;

- Eettlement zervices; and

- Other banking operations.
Asset and Asset and liabilities managament.
liabilities

management:
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Vietnam Prasperity Joint Stock Commercial Bank BOS/TCTD-HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS (contnued)
as at 30 Junc 2019 and for the six-month period then ended

43, SEGMENT INFORMATION (contirued)
43.2  The supplementary segment information by geographical area

The Bank and its subsidiaries’ orincipal activities are mainly taking place within ietnam,
Thersfore, the Bank and its subsidiaries’ risks and returns are not impacted by the Bank's
operations thal are taken place in different locations. Therefore, the Bank's management
dentifizg that the Bank has only one geegraphical segment. Accordingly, the preseniation of
geogrephical segment information i= not required.

44, CHANGE IN NET PROFIT BEFORE TAX FOR THE YEAR
The consalidatad profit bafore tax for the year ended 30 June 2016 of the Bank and its

subsidiares decreased by VHND22 909 milion compared to the consclidated profit befoqe tax
for the year ended 30 June 2018, eguivalent to 0.76% decrease due to the following

reasons.
Frofit before fax
YIND mitfion
Frofit increase due to increasa in inferest and similar incomsa 7 SR4 708
Profit increase due o increasa in net fae and commission income G628 404
Profit decrease due to decrease in net gain from trading of
foreign currencies (69 378)
Frofif increase due to increase in net gain from securities
hetld for trading 136,779
Profif increase due to increase in net gain from
investment securities B2 509
Profit decrease dueto decreass in net gain from other
operating activiies {T23.774)
Frofit decrease due to decreass in income from investments in
other entities (845}
Profit decrease due to increase in cperating expenses 1,330,831
Profit decrease due to increase in provision for credit loss=es, 1,023 531)
{32,909)

45. EVENTS AFTER THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET DATE
There have besn no signficant events occuming after the consolidated balance sheet date

which require adjustments and disclosures to be made in ths consclidatad financial
statamants,
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Vietnam Prosperity Joint Stock Commercial Bank BOS/TCTO-HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 30 June 2018 and for the six-month period then ended

46, EXCHANGE RATES OF APPLICABLE FOREIGN CURRENCIES AGAINST VND AT THE
REPORTING DATE

30 June 2079 37 December 2015

VND ViND

ALD 16,352 16,338
CAD 17,795 17,1&
CHF 23,854 23,665
CHNY 387 3,338
Dk 2,160 3150
EUR 26,687 26,556
GEP 28,583 28,475
JPY 216 210
NZD 17,244 17,249
EEK 3,078 3.078
EGD 17,228 16,975
THB 40 G40
usoD 23,335 23,220
KAL) 381,500 365,000

{*) This is exchange rate for 0.01 tasl of gold

Freparad b:,r:“"é}‘;f Reviewed by:
_.-'—'_'_'__'_
%f
Ms. Nguyen Thi Thu Hang Ms. Le Hoang Khanh An
Chief Accountant Acting Chief Financial Officer
Hanai, VWietnam
30 July 2019
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